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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Excel Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion

1.  We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Excel Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as 
the ‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), and 
its associate company (Refer Note 48 to the attached consolidated financial statements), which comprise the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), 
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information prepared based on the relevant records. (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

2.  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state 
of affairs of the Group and its associate company as at March 31, 2021, of consolidated total comprehensive income 
(comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for 
the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and its associate company in accordance with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in India in terms of the Code 
of Ethics issued by ICAI and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by 
the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph 14 of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

4.  Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Assessment of the valuation of investment in unquoted 
equity instruments:

(Refer Note 2(a) and 8 to the consolidated financial statements)

The Company has investments in an investee company 
amounting to ̀  14,486.37 lakhs in unquoted equity instruments 
valued at ‘Fair value through Other comprehensive income’ in 
accordance with Accounting Standard (Ind AS 109), Financial 
Instruments at each reporting date. 

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment of 
the valuation of investments in unquoted equity instruments 
include following:

•  Understanding and evaluation of the design and testing of 
operating effectiveness of controls over determination of 
fair value (including valuation model and assumptions / 
judgements).

•  Evaluation of competence, capabilities and objectivity 
of the independent external professional valuation expert 
engaged by the Management.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

An independent external professional valuation expert is 
engaged by the management to determine the fair value, who 
ascertains the fair value based on the Comparable Companies’ 
Multiple Inputs.

The key judgements involved in the valuation are identification 
of comparable companies, assessment of maintainable 
EBIDTA and other relevant valuation parameters.

Given the inherent subjectivity in the valuation of the above 
investments, relative significance of these investments to 
the financial statements and the nature and extent of audit 
procedures involved, we determined this to be a key audit 
matter.

•  Using auditors’ expert to assist in audit of valuation 
approach, methodology and key valuation assumptions.

•  Assessing the reasonableness of the input data provided 
by management to the external professional valuation 
expert, such as revenue, EBIDTA, PAT of investee 
company for the year ended March 31, 2021.

• Testing the mathematical accuracy of the valuation report.

•  Assessing adequacy of relevant disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements.

Based on the audit procedures performed, we found 
management’s assessment of the valuation of investment in 
unquoted equity instruments and related disclosures were 
considered to be reasonable.

Other Information

5.  The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our and other 
auditor’s report thereon. The Annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

  Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

  In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

  When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate 
the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate action as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

6.  The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, 
consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows, and changes in equity of the Group including its associate 
company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards 
specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its 
associate company are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for 
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.
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7.  In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the 
Group and of its associate company are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its associate company to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so.

8.  The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate company are responsible for 
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associate company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

9.  Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

10.  As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

 •  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 •  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 
the Holding company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls.

 •  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

 •  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the ability of the Group and its associate company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group 
and its associate company to cease to continue as a going concern.

 •  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

 •  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities 
within the Group and its associate company to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are 
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors 
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion.
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11.  We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company of which we are the independent auditors 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

12.  We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

13.  From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter 
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

Other Matter

14.  We did not audit the financial statements of two subsidiaries whose financial statements reflect total assets of  
` 16,201.15 lakhs and net assets of ` 13,990.51 lakhs as at March 31, 2021, total revenue of ` Nil, total comprehensive 
income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income) of ` 3,593.96 lakhs and net cash outflows amounting to  
` 371.13 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated 
financial statements also include the Group’s share of total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other 
comprehensive income) of ̀  Nil as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of one associate company, 
whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors 
whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management, and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements 
insofar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and associate company and our 
report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act including report on Other Information insofar as it relates to the 
aforesaid subsidiaries and associate company, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

  Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is 
not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

15. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

 (a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

 (b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

 (c)  The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account and records maintained for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements.

 (d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act.

 (e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2021 
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its 
subsidiary companies and associate company incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies and 
its associate company incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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 (f)  With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Group and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure A.

 (g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us:

  (i)  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending litigations on the consolidated 
financial position of the Group and its associate company - Refer Note 50 to the consolidated financial statements.

  (ii)  The Holding Company had long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2021 for which there 
were no material foreseeable losses. The subsidiary companies and associate company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2021.

  (iii)  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Holding Company. During the year, there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the subsidiary companies and associate company incorporated in India.

  (iv)  The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Group for the year ended 
March 31, 2021.

16.  The Holding Company has paid / provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated 
by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. The subsidiaries incorporated in India have not paid / 
provided any managerial remuneration to any director during the year.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Nehal Upadhayay
Place: Mumbai Partner
Date: May 28, 2021 Membership Number: 115872

UDIN: 21115872AAAABH4444
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 15(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Excel Industries Limited on the 
consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Act

1.  In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended March 
31, 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Excel Industries Limited 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, 
as of that date. Reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements is not applicable to one associate company incorporated in India 
namely MabiTrash Recycle Ventures Private Limited, pursuant to MCA notification GSR 583(E) dated 13 June 2017.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.  The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company and its subsidiary companies, to whom reporting under  
clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements is applicable, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding 
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

4.  Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their 
reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.  A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial 
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7.  Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.  In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in 
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and such internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. 

Other Matters

9.  Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to two subsidiary companies, which are companies 
incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India. Our 
opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Nehal Upadhayay
Place: Mumbai Partner
Date: May 28, 2021 Membership Number: 115872
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes
As at 

March 31, 2021
As at 

March 31, 2020

ASSETS
 Non-current assets
  Property, plant and equipment 3  34,593.80  33,201.52 
  Right-of-use-assets 4  2,289.50  2,356.37 
  Capital work-in-progress  1,685.19  933.67 
  Investment properties 5  85.32  142.13 
  Intangible assets 6  1,918.46  1,940.72 
  Intangible assets under development —  21.18 
  Investments in joint venture and associate 7 — —
  Financial assets
   (i) Investments 8  34,970.47  24,960.74 
   (ii) Loans 9  622.62  534.39 
   (iii) Other financial assets 10  4.17 —
  Current tax assets (net)  1,807.65  1,464.58 
  Other non-current assets 11  218.32  157.92 

Total non-current assets  78,195.50  65,713.22 

 Current assets
  Inventories 12  6,897.11  7,771.97 
  Financial assets
   (i) Investments 13  1,575.21  1,466.06 
   (ii) Trade receivables 14  17,263.91  14,969.51 
   (iii) Cash and cash equivalents 15  4,234.85  2,092.37 
   (iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 16  971.27  150.08 
   (v) Loans 17  228.90  223.18 
   (vi) Other financial assets 18  85.50  93.58 
  Other current assets 19  1,662.67  1,254.59 

Total current assets  32,919.42  28,021.34 

Total assets  111,114.92  93,734.56 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 20  628.53  628.53 
Other equity 21  84,525.52  69,460.43 

Total equity  85,154.05  70,088.96 

LIABILITIES
 Non-current liabilities
  Financial liabilities
   (i) Borrowings 22  0.55  2.12 
   (ii) Lease liabilities 23  217.33  251.05 
   (iii) Other financial liabilities 24 —  889.19 
  Employee benefit obligations 25  1,296.45  1,273.41 
  Deferred tax liabilities (net) 26  8,704.57  6,419.00 

Total non-current liabilities  10,218.90  8,834.77 

 Current liabilities
  Financial liabilities
   (i) Borrowings 27  607.12  2,126.15 
   (ii) Trade payables
    (a) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 28  1,160.87  666.57 
    (b) total outstanding dues other than (ii) (a) above 28  11,139.76  9,824.20 
   (iii) Lease liabilities 29  33.73  28.52 
   (iv) Other financial liabilities 30  1,552.10  1,250.98 
  Employee benefit obligations 31  735.93  678.78 
  Current tax liabilities (net)  180.78  5.72 
  Other current liabilities 32  331.68  229.91 
Total current liabilities  15,741.97  14,810.83 

Total liabilities  25,960.87  23,645.60 
Total equity and liabilities  111,114.92  93,734.56 
Significant accounting policies 1
Critical estimates and judgements 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No. 012754N/N500016

NEHAL UPADHAYAY
Partner
Membership No.: 115872

Place : Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Excel Industries Limited

ASHWIN C. SHROFF 
Executive Chairman 
DIN: 00019952

HRISHIT A. SHROFF 
Executive Director 
DIN: 00033693

N.R. KANNAN 
Chief Executive Officer

DEVENDRA P. DOSI 
Chief Financial Officer

SURENDRA K. SINGHVI 
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2021
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No. 012754N/N500016

NEHAL UPADHAYAY
Partner
Membership No.: 115872

Place : Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Excel Industries Limited

ASHWIN C. SHROFF 
Executive Chairman 
DIN: 00019952

HRISHIT A. SHROFF 
Executive Director 
DIN: 00033693

N.R. KANNAN 
Chief Executive Officer

DEVENDRA P. DOSI 
Chief Financial Officer

SURENDRA K. SINGHVI 
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2021

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes
Year ended 

March 31, 2021
Year ended

March 31, 2020

INCOME

 Revenue from operations 33  74,946.60  70,248.44 

 Other income 34  941.32  1,083.98 

 Total income  75,887.92  71,332.42 

EXPENSES

 Cost of materials consumed 35  35,904.44  33,128.61 

 Purchase of stock-in-trade 36  223.21  503.49 

 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 37  793.96  (774.90)

 Employee benefit expenses 38  8,938.07  8,460.63 

 Depreciation and amortisation expenses 39  2,715.32  2,278.05 

 Other expenses 40  17,014.07  15,990.19 

 Finance costs 41  217.88  255.76 

 Total expenses  65,806.95  59,841.83 

 Profit before share of net profits of investments accounted for using equity method and tax  10,080.97  11,490.59 

 Share of net profit / (loss) of joint venture and associate accounted for using equity method — —

 Profit before tax  10,080.97  11,490.59 

 Income tax expense 26

 — Current tax  2,169.43  2,635.64 

 — Deferred tax  806.24  (755.53)

 — Tax in respect of earlier years  (3.29)  3.23 

 Total tax expense  2,972.38  1,883.34 

 Profit for the year  7,108.59  9,607.25 

Other comprehensive income

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

   Remeasurement gains/(losses) on net defined benefit plans 42  (93.97)  (224.65)

   Changes in fair value of equity instruments 8  9,529.80  (6,962.69)

 (ii) Tax relating to above 26  (1,479.33)  2,069.60 

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss — —

 (ii) Tax relating to above — —

Other Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  7,956.50  (5,117.74)

Total comprehensive income for the year  15,065.09  4,489.51 

Earnings per share (in INR) 51

Basic  56.55  76.43 

Diluted  56.55  76.43 
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STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Year ended 
March 31, 2020

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Profit before tax  10,080.97  11,490.59 

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expenses  2,715.32  2,278.05 

Finance costs  217.88  255.76 

Provision for doubtful debts (net)  154.64  (53.95)

Provision for doubtful advances  83.78  —   

Unrealised exchange differences (net)  13.68  (27.22)

Dividend income  (409.53)  (857.53)

Interest income  (165.91)  (75.14)

Gain on fair valuation of investments through profit and loss  (66.93)  (5.87)

Profit on sale of investment  —    (32.37)

Profit on sale of investment property  (137.05)  —   

Net loss on sale / discard of property, plant and equipment  38.58  42.10 

Operating profit before working capital changes  12,525.43  13,014.42 

Adjustments for:

(Increase) / decrease in Inventories  874.86  (897.29)

(Increase) / decrease in Trade receivables  (2,455.74)  1,089.56 

(Increase) / decrease in Other bank balances  (821.19)  (32.11)

(Increase) / decrease in Loans (Current and Non current)  (93.95)  (159.30)

(Increase) / decrease in Other financial assets (Current and Non current)  3.66  114.94 

(Increase) / decrease in Other assets (Current and Non current)  (516.02)  (44.98)

Increase / (decrease) in Trade payables  1,802.88  369.92 

Increase / (decrease) in Other financial liabilities (Current and Non current)  11.86  (67.57)

Increase / (decrease) in Employee benefit obligations (Current and Non current)  (13.78)  259.66 

Increase / (decrease) in Other current liabilities  101.77  72.18 

 11,419.78  13,719.43 

Less: Income taxes paid (net of refunds)  2,334.15  2,701.64 

NET CASH INFLOW GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES — [A]  9,085.63  11,017.79 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (including capital work-in-progress, capital advances and capital vendor)  (4,769.46)  (6,523.27)

Purchase of Intangible assets  (2.04)  (51.78)

Payment towards Acquisition of business (Refer Note 47)  (750.00)  (6,750.00)

Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment  16.24  4.08 

Proceeds from sale of Investment property  191.94  —   

Proceeds from sale of Current investments  50.00  13,235.03 

Interest received  166.16  69.37 

Dividend received  409.53  857.53 

Inter corporate deposit given  —    250.00 

Purchase of current and non current investments  (572.15)  (7,229.38)

NET CASH (OUTFLOW) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES - [B]  (5,259.78)  (6,138.42)
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Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Year ended 
March 31, 2020

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from Borrowings  —    1,510.77 

Repayment of Borrowings  (1,523.16)  (83.26)

Principal elements of Lease payments (Refer Note 56)  (50.39)  (24.34)

Transfer of Fixed deposits accepted from public (including Interest)  (0.97)  (1.14)

Dividend paid (Including Dividend distribution tax)  —    (4,356.95)

Interest paid  (108.85)  (191.02)

NET CASH (OUTFLOW) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES — [C]  (1,683.37)  (3,145.94)

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — [A+B+C]  2,142.48  1,733.43 

 Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Refer Note 15)  2,092.37  358.94 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  4,234.85  2,092.37 

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Balances with Banks

 In current accounts  523.28  2,084.34 

 Cash on Hand  0.82  8.03 

Deposits with maturity of less than three months  3,710.75 —  

Total cash and cash equivalents  4,234.85  2,092.37 

Notes:

1. The consolidated cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows.

2. The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As per our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No. 012754N/N500016

NEHAL UPADHAYAY
Partner
Membership No.: 115872

Place : Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Excel Industries Limited

ASHWIN C. SHROFF 
Executive Chairman 
DIN: 00019952

HRISHIT A. SHROFF 
Executive Director 
DIN: 00033693

N.R. KANNAN 
Chief Executive Officer

DEVENDRA P. DOSI 
Chief Financial Officer

SURENDRA K. SINGHVI 
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2021
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 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

 Particulars Note Amount

 As at March 31, 2020  628.53 

 Changes in equity share capital 20 —

 As at March 31, 2021  628.53 

B. OTHER EQUITY

Particulars Notes

Attributable to owners of Excel Industries Limited

Reserves and surplus Other reserves

Securities 
premium

General 
Reserve 

Capital 
redemption 

reserve

Capital 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Statutory 
Reserve

FVOCI –  
Equity  

investments

 Total other 
equity 

Balance at March 31, 2019  534.37  29,587.32  16.77  0.01  15,765.82  450.86  22,972.72  69,327.87 

Profit for the year  —    —    —    —    9,607.25  —    —    9,607.25 

Other comprehensive income 21  —    —    —    —    (168.11)  —    (4,949.63)  (5,117.74)

Total comprehensive income 
for the year  —    —    —    —    9,439.14  —    (4,949.63)  4,489.51 

Transfer from Retained earnings  —    5,000.00  —    —    (5,047.54)  47.54  —    —   

Dividend paid (Including dividend 
distribution tax) 45  —    —    —    —    (4,356.95)  —    —    (4,356.95)

Balance at March 31, 2020  534.37  34,587.32  16.77  0.01  15,800.47  498.40  18,023.09  69,460.43 

Profit for the year  —    —    —    —    7,108.59  —    —    7,108.59 

Other comprehensive income 21  —    —    —    —    (70.32)  —    8,026.82  7,956.50 

Total comprehensive income 
for the year  —    —    —    —    7,038.27  —    8,026.82  15,065.09 

Transfer from Retained earnings  —    5,000.00  —    —    (5,002.19)  2.19  —    —   

Dividend paid (Including dividend 
distribution tax) 45  —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —   

Balance at March 31, 2021  534.37  39,587.32  16.77  0.01  17,836.55  500.59  26,049.91  84,525.52 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No. 012754N/N500016

NEHAL UPADHAYAY
Partner
Membership No.: 115872

Place : Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Excel Industries Limited

ASHWIN C. SHROFF 
Executive Chairman 
DIN: 00019952

HRISHIT A. SHROFF 
Executive Director 
DIN: 00033693

N.R. KANNAN 
Chief Executive Officer

DEVENDRA P. DOSI 
Chief Financial Officer

SURENDRA K. SINGHVI 
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2021
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BACKGROUND
Excel Industries Limited (the Company or the Holding Company), its subsidiaries, associate and joint 
venture together referred to as the Group. Excel Industries Limited is a public company domiciled 
in India. Its shares are listed on BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. The 
Holding Company is engaged in manufacturing and selling of Chemicals, Pharma intermediates and 
Environmental products. Chemicals comprising Industrial and Specialty chemicals and Pesticides 
Intermediates. Environmental products comprising of Soil Enricher, Bio-Pesticides and other  
Bio-products. The Holding Company caters to both domestic and international markets. The Holding 
Company is also engaged in manufacturing activity on behalf of third parties. Excel Bio Resources 
Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and is in the process of exploring business 
opportunities in the areas of renewable bio-resources, waste management, renewable energy and 
biotechnological processes. Kamaljyot Investments Limited, a Non Banking Financial Company, 
another wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, is primarily engaged in activities of Investment 
Holding and Financing.

NOTE 1 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

  This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
consolidated financial statements. These accounting policies have been consistently applied to 
all the years presented by the Group unless otherwise stated.

  These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of 
Directors on May 28, 2021.

 A. Basis of Preparation

  (i) Compliance with Ind AS

    The consolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with  
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015]  
and other relevant provisions of the Act.

  (ii) Historical Cost Convention

    The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, 
except the following:

   •  certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) and 
deferred consideration is measured at fair value;  

   •  defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.  

   •  assets and liabilities acquired on account of business combination are 
measured at fair value.  

  (iii) Amended standards adopted by the Group
    The Group has applied the following amendments to Ind AS for the first time for 

their annual reporting period commencing April 1, 2020.

   * Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8, Definition of material.

   * Amendments to Ind AS 103, Definition of Business.

   * Amendments to Ind AS 116, Covid-19 related concessions.

   *  Amendments to Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 107, interest rate benchmark reform.

    The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the consolidated financial 
statements.

  (iv) Current and non-current classification

    All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the 
Group’s normal operating cycle (twelve months) and other criteria set out in the 
Schedule III to the Act.
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 B. Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

   The Consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of 
Excel Industries Limited (‘’the Holding Company’’), its subsidiaries, associate and joint 
venture. The details of the share holding held by the Group is given in Note 48. 
 

  (i) Subsidiaries

    Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls 
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from 
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through 
its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully 
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are 
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. 

    The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations 
by the Group.

    The Group combines the financial statements of the Holding Company and its 
subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, 
income and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains 
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are 
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the 
transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where 
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

  (ii) Associate

    Associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not control 
or joint control. This is generally the case where The Group holds between 20% 
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the 
equity method of accounting (see note (iv) below), after initially being recognised 
at cost.

  (iii) Joint ventures

    Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method  
(See note (iv) below), after initially being recognised at cost in the consolidated 
balance sheet.

  (iv) Equity Method

    Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at 
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition 
profits or losses of the investee in statement of profit and loss, and the Group’s 
share of other comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive 
income. Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are 
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment. 

    When the Group’s share of losses in an equity accounted investment equals 
or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term 
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred 
obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity. 

    Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint 
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities. 
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of 
an impairment of the asset transferred. 

 C. SEGMENT REPORTING

   Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with internal reporting provided 
to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The Executive Chairman and Managing 
Director are designated as CODM. Refer Note 46 for segment information presented.

NOTE 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.)
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 D. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

  (i) Functional and presentation currency

    Items included in the consolidated financial statements of each of the Group’s 
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial 
statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR) which is the functional and 
presentation currency of the Group.

  (ii) Transaction and balances

    Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency at the 
exchange rates on the date of transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses 
resulting from settlement of such transactions and from translation of monetary 
assets and liabilities at the year-end exchange rates are generally recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

    Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are 
presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss, within finance costs. All other foreign 
exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a 
net basis. 

    Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost and accordingly the 
investments in shares of foreign entity are expressed in Indian currency at the rate 
of exchange prevailing at the time when the original investments are made or fair 
values determined. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary 
items or on translating monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
 and Loss.

  (iii) Group Companies:

    The results and financial position of foreign operations that have a functional 
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation 
currency as follows:

   •  assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate as on that balance sheet 
date,

   • income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates, and

   •  all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive 
income.

    When a foreign operation is sold, the associated exchange differences are 
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale. Goodwill and fair 
value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as 
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

 E. Revenue recognition

   Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized on transfer of control of promised 
goods or services to a customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the 
Group is expected to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services.

   Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount 
of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance 
obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of 
variable consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered by the 
Group as part of the contract. This variable consideration is estimated based on the 
expected value of outflow. Revenue (net of variable consideration) is recognized only 
to the extent that it is highly probable that the amount will not be subject to significant 
reversal when uncertainty relating to its recognition is resolved.

   In certain customer contracts, shipping and handling services are treated as a distinct 
separate performance obligation and the Group recognises revenue for such services over 
time when the performance obligation is completed.

NOTE 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.)
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  Sale of goods:
   Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the Group satisfies a performance 

obligation in accordance with the provisions of contract with the customer. This is achieved 
when control of the product has been transferred to the customer, which is generally 
determined when title, ownership, risk of obsolesce and loss pass to the customer and the 
Group has present right to payment, all of which occurs at a point in time upon shipment 
or delivery of goods. The Group collects goods and services tax (GST) on behalf of the 
government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Group. Hence, 
they are excluded from revenue.

  Income from services
   Revenue from services is recognized over time by measuring progress towards satisfaction 

of performance obligation for the services rendered. The Group collects GST on behalf of 
the government and, therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing to the Group. Hence, 
it is excluded from revenue. 

  Export incentives
   Income from export incentives such as Duty drawback / MEIS scheme etc. are recognised 

on an accrual basis to the extent the ultimate realisation is reasonably certain.

  Interest income
   Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount 

outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head 
“other income” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

  Dividend
   Dividends are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive 

payment is established, it is probable that economic benefits associated with the dividend 
will flow to the Group, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

  Gain on sales of Securities
   Gain and losses on sale of securities are recognised on a trade date basis. Gains and 

losses on sale of securities are determined based on the weighted average cost method of 
accounting.

 F. Government Grants
   Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable 

assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all attached 
conditions.

   Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are 
intended to compensate and presented within other income.

   Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included 
in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to the Statement of Profit and 
Loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented 
within other income.

 G. Income Tax
   The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s 

taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred 
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

   The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or 
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically 
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax 
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the 
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

   Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary 
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are 

NOTE 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.)
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not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of Goodwill. Deferred income tax 
is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects 
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined 
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of 
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset 
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

   Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax 
losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those 
temporary differences and losses.

   Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to 
offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the 
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has 
a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

   Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Profit and Loss Statement, except to the 
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly 
in equity, respectively.

 H. Leases

  As a lessee
   The leases are recognised as a right-of-use assets and corresponding liability at the date 

at which the leased assets are available for use by the Group. Contracts may contain both 
lease and non-lease components. The Group allocates the consideration in contract to the 
lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for 
lease of real estate for which the Company is lessee, it has elected not to separate lease 
and non-lease components and instead accounts for these as single lease components.

   Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value 
basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments  
(as applicable):

   (a)  Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives 
receivable

  (b)  Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using 
the index or rate as at the commencement date

  (c)  Amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees

  (d)   The exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise 
that option, and

  (e)   Payments of the penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the 
Group exercising that option.

   Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included 
in the measurement of the liability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest 
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the 
case for the leases in the Group, the lessees’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being 
the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain 
an asset of similar value to the right-to-use asset in a similar economic environment with 
similar terms, security and conditions.

   To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group: 

  (a)   where possible, uses recent third party financing received by the individual lessee 
as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third 
party financing was received.

  (b)   uses a build up approach that starts with a risk free interest rate adjusted for credit 
risk for leases held by the Group, which does not have recent third party financing, 
and 

  (c)   makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.

NOTE 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.)
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   The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on 
the index or rate, which are not included in the lease liability until they take effect. When 
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is 
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use assets.

   Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance costs. The finance cost is 
charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of 
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

   Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following (as applicable):

  (a) the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,   

  (b)   any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease 
incentives received,   

  (c)  any initial direct costs, and    

  (d)  restoration costs.

   Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the 
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase 
option, the right-of-use assets is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

   Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value 
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term 
leases are leases with lease term of 12 months or less. Low value assets comprises 
IT equipment and small items of office furniture.

   As a lessor
   Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is recognised in income 

on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an 
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised 
as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased 
assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature. The Group did not need to 
make any adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting 
the new leasing standard.

 I. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

   Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to 
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested 
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by 
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. 
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for 
which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the 
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial 
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal 
of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

   At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible 
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have 
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the 
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss (if any). When 
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group 
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets 
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated 
to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent 
allocation basis can be identified.

   Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use 
are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the 
asset may be impaired.

NOTE 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.)
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   Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash 
flows have not been adjusted. 

   If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its 
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its 
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

   Non-financial assets (other than Goodwill) that suffered an impairment are reviewed 
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. Where 
an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or 
cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but 
so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately 
in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

 J. Cash and Cash Equivalents
   For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents 

includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, 
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value.

 K. Trade receivables
   Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed 

in the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the 
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing 
components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables 
with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them 
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

 L. Inventories

   Raw material, stores and spares, packing material, work in progress, traded and finished 
goods are stated as lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of Raw material store 
and spare, packing material and traded goods comprises of cost of purchases. Cost 
of work-in-progress and finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and 
an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being 
allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories also include all 
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. 
Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of monthly simple 
weighted average. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates 
and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course 
of business less the estimated cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary to 
make the sale.

   Materials and other supplies held for use in production of inventories (work-in-progress 
and finished goods) are not written down below the cost if the finished products in which 
they will be used are expected to sell at or above the cost.

   By-products and unserviceable / damaged finished goods are valued at estimated net 
realisable value.

 M. Investments and other financial assets

  (i) Classification
    The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
   •  those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other 

comprehensive income, or through the Statement of Profit and Loss), and
   • those measured at amortised cost.
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    The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the 
financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

    For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in 
debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment 
is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the 
Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account 
for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

  (ii) Recognition

    Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on  
trade-date, being the date on which the group commits to purchase or sale the 
financial asset.

  (iii) Measurement

    At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value 
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through the Statement of  
Profit and Loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of 
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through 
the Statement of Profit and Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

   Debt Instruments

    Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business 
model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. 
There are three measurement categories into which the Group classifies its  
debt instruments:

   Amortised cost:

    Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows 
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. 
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using 
the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is 
recognised directly in the Statement of Profit and Loss and presented in other gains/
(losses). Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

   Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

    Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the 
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal 
and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 
(FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the 
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange 
gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset 
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is 
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). 
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the 
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in 
other gains and losses and impairment expenses are presented as separate line 
item in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

   Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

    Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair 
value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently 
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship 
is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss 
within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income from 
these financial assets is included in other income.

NOTE 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

18560th  ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

FINANCIAL SECTIONS STATUTORY REPORTSCORPORATE OVERVIEW 

   Equity instruments
    The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the 

Group’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity 
investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification 
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the 
investment. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as 
other income when the group’s right to receive payments is established.

    Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment losses (and reversal 
of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported 
separately from other changes in fair value.

  (iv) Impairment of financial assets
    The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses 

associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The 
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk. Note 44 details how the Group determines whether there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk.

    For trade receivables only, the Group applies the simplified approach required by 
Ind AS 109, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial 
recognition of the receivables.

  (v) Derecognition of financial assets
   A financial asset is derecognised only when

   •  The Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial 
asset or

   •  retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but 
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

    Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates whether it has 
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In 
such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial 
asset is not derecognised.

    Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially 
all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is 
derecognised if the Group has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the 
Group retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised 
to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

  (vi) Income recognition
   Interest income
    Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed 

as interest income within other income. Interest income on financial assets at 
amortised cost and financial assets at FVOCI is calculated using the effective 
interest method is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as part of  
other income.

    Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross 
carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that subsequently 
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest 
rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of 
the loss allowance).

   Dividends

    Dividends are received from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and 
at FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as other income in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss when the right to receive payment is established. This applies even if they are 
paid out of pre-acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery 
of part of the cost of the investment.
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 N. Derivatives and hedging activities
   Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered 

into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting 
period and impact is recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss account.

   The fair values of various derivative financial instruments used for hedging purposes 
are disclosed in Note 43. The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a 
non-current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than 
12 months; it is classified as a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the 
hedged item is less than 12 months.

 O. Off-setting of financial instruments
   Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 

balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the 
liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future 
events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of 
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the group or the counterparty.

 P. Property, Plant and Equipment
   Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment 

are stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairments, if any. Historical cost 
includes tax, duties, freight and other incidental expenditure that is directly attributable to the 
acquisition of the items. Indirect expenses during construction period, which are required 
to bring the asset in the condition for its intended use by the management and are directly 
attributable to bringing the asset to its position, are also capitalized.

   Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The 
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised 
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the 
reporting period in which they are incurred.

   Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost of fixed assets that are not yet ready for their 
intended use at the year end.

  Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

   Following assets have different useful life from those prescribed in Schedule II of 
the Companies Act 2013, below on evaluation of estimated useful lives done by the 
management.

   Description of Asset Depreciation years Schedule II years

  Plant and Machinery - Metallic 1 to 18 years 20 years
  Plant and Machinery - Non-metallic 1 to 8 years 20 years
  Electrical installations 1 to 10 years 10 years
  Buildings 3 to 60 years 60 years
  Road 5 to 10 years 10 years
  Laboratory equipment 2 to 10 years 10 years
  Furniture, fixture and office equipment 2 to 10 years 10 years

   Assets individually costing INR 25,000 or less are depreciated fully in the year of 
acquisition.

   The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the 
asset’s useful life or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if there is 
no reasonable certainty that The Group will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

   The useful lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation 
of future events which are higher than those specified by Schedule II to the Companies Act; 
2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The residual values are not more than 
5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, 
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

NOTE 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

18760th  ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

FINANCIAL SECTIONS STATUTORY REPORTSCORPORATE OVERVIEW 

   An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the 
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

   Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying 
amount. These are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 Q. Investment property
   Properties that are held for long-term rentals yields or for capital appreciation (including 

property under construction for such purposes) or both, and that are not occupied by the 
group, is classified as investment property.

   Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including related transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Subsequent 
expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that 
future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and cost 
of the item can be measured reliably. All the other repairs and maintenance costs are 
expensed when incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying 
amount of the replaced part is de recognised. 

   Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated 
useful lives. Investment properties generally have a useful life of 60 years. The useful 
life has been determined based on historical experience with similar assets as well as 
anticipation of future events.

   Though the Group measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair 
value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based 
on evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer.

   Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when 
they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from 
their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of 
the asset is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of derecognition.

 R. Intangible assets and Amortisation
   Intangible assets are amortised over their respective individual estimated useful lives on 

a straight line basis, but not exceeding the period given here under:

  (i) Goodwill
    Goodwill on acquisitions of business is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is 

not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at 
cost less accumulated impairment losses.

    Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment 
testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in 
which goodwill arose. The units of groups of units are identified at the lowest level 
at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes, which in our 
case are the operating segment.

  (ii) Computer software
   Computer software 4 years

  (iii) Research and development
    Research expenditure and development expenditure that do not meet the criteria 

mentioned in Ind AS 38 are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development 
costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a 
subsequent period.

 S. Trade and other payables
   These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior 

to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as 
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. 
They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method.
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 T. Borrowings
   Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. 

Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the 
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest 
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction 
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn 
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is 
no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee 
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the 
facility to which it relates.

   Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract 
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial 
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, 
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

   Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right 
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where 
there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the 
end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on 
the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, 
after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to 
demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

 U. Borrowing Costs 

   General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time 
that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying 
assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use or sale.

   Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending 
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for 
capitalisation.

  Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

 V. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

   Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past 
events but their existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one 
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or where any 
present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a 
reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made.

   Provisions are recognised when The Group has a present legal or constructive obligation 
as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required 
to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not 
recognised for future operating losses.

   Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be 
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. 
A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item 
included in the same class of obligations may be small.

   Provisions are measured at the present value the of best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount 
rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase 
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

   A contingent asset is disclosed and not recognised, where an inflow of economic benefits 
is probable. 
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 W. Employee Benefits 

  (i) Short-term obligations:

    Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are 
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which 
the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employee’s 
services up to the end of the reporting and are measured at the amounts expected 
to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liability are presented as current 
employee benefits obligation in the balance sheet.

  (ii) Long-term employee benefit obligations 

    Leave Obligation:

    The liabilities for leave obligation by actuaries which are not expected to be settled 
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employee render 
the related services. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected 
payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the 
reporting period using the Projected Unit Credit method. The benefits are discounted 
using the market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that 
have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligations. Remeasurements 
as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions  
(i.e. actuarial losses/ gains) are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

   Long Service awards:

    The Group provides for the long service awards for eligible employees as per the 
scheme announced by the Group. The liability towards the long services awards is 
provided at each balance sheet date on the basis of independent actuary valuation.

   Defined benefit plan — Gratuity:

    The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plans 
is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting 
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated 
annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

    The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting 
the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the 
reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms 
of the related obligation. The estimated future payments are discounted using 
market yields determined by reference to high-quality corporate bonds that are 
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms 
approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

    The net interest cost, calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of 
the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets, is recognised 
as employee benefit expenses in the statement of profit and loss. Remeasurement 
gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other 
comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of 
changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

    Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan 
amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past 
service cost.

   Defined benefit plan — Voluntary early separation scheme:

    The Group also has a defined benefit plan for its employees, i.e. Medical Voluntary 
retirement scheme in which employees suffering from continued ill-health not 
amounting to occupational disease and thereby unable to perform normal duties 
of their post. Under the Scheme, the benefits will be given for a retired employee 
for a maximum period up to 10 years or age of retirement, whichever is earlier.  
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In case of early death of the employee, the legal heir of the employee shall get 
50% of separation benefit for the rest of the benefit period. The costs of providing 
benefits under the said plan is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each 
year-end. Separate actuarial valuation is carried out for the plan using the projected 
unit credit method. Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience 
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period 
in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in 
retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. 
This Scheme is not funded. 

   Defined Contribution Plan — Provident Fund:
    The Group pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident 

funds as per local regulatory authorities. The Group has no further obligations once 
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined 
contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit 
expense when they are due. 

   Defined Contribution Plan — Superannuation Fund:
    The Group makes contribution to the Superannuation Scheme, a defined 

contribution scheme, administered by insurance companies. The Group has no 
obligation to the scheme beyond its monthly contributions.

    There are no obligations other than the contribution payable to the Superannuation 
Fund Trust. The Group recognises contribution payable to the Superannuation Fund 
as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. The contribution 
is charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year when the contribution 
accrues. The scheme is funded with a insurance Group in the form of qualifying 
insurance policies.

  (iii) Bonus plans
    The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Group recognises 

a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has 
created a constructive obligation.

 X. Business Combination
   The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for all business combinations, 

regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration 
transferred by the Group to obtain control of a business is calculated as the sum of the fair 
values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred to the former owners of acquired business, 
the equity interests issued by the Company and fair value of any assets or liabilities 
resulting from a contingent / deferred consideration arrangement as at the acquisition 
date i.e. date on which it obtains control of the acquired business. Acquisition related 
costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred, except to the extent 
related to the issue of debt or equity securities.

   Identifiable tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business 
combination are measured initially at their fair values as at the acquisition date.

   Goodwill is measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the 
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired business and acquisition date fair 
value of any previous equity interest held in acquired entity/business, over the net identifiable 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Such goodwill is tested annually for impairment. 

   If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business 
acquired, the difference is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated 
in equity as capital reserve provided there is clear evidence of the underlying reasons for 
classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase. In other cases, the bargain 
purchase gain is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve.

   Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the 
future are discounted to their present value as at the date of acquisition. The discount rate 
used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing 
could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

   Deferred consideration is classified as financial liability. Amount classified as financial 
liability are subsequently re-measured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 Y. Contributed equity
   Equity shares are classified as equity.
   Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in 

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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 Z. Dividends 
   Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorized 

and no longer at the discretion of the Group, on or before the end of the reporting period 
but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

 AA Earnings Per Share 

   The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its ordinary shares. 
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary 
shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
during the year. Diluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting the profit or loss 
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential  
ordinary shares.

 AB Rounding of amounts

   All amounts disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and notes have been rounded 
off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

NOTE 2. CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
  In preparing the financial statements in confirming with accounting principle generally accepted 

in India, managements is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of 
the financial statements and the amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to such estimates is recognised in 
the period in which the same is determined.

  The following paragraphs explains areas that are considered more critical, involving a higher 
degree of judgement and complexity.

 (a) Estimated fair value of unlisted securities:

   The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined 
using valuation techniques. This involves selection of valuation method, developing 
estimates, identification of comparable companies, assessment of maintainable  
EBITA and other relevant valuation parameters. Estimated fair values may vary from the 
actual price that would be achieved in an arms length transaction at the reporting date. 
(Refer Note 43)

 (b) Useful lives of Property plant and equipment and Intangible assets

   Depreciation and amortisation is based on management estimates of the future useful 
lives of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. Estimates may change 
due to technological developments, competition, changes in market conditions and other 
factors and may result in changes in the estimated useful life and in the depreciation and 
amortisation charges.

 (c) Estimation of long term employee benefits:

   The liabilities of the Group arising from long term employee benefit obligations and 
the related current service cost, are determined on an actuarial basis using various 
assumptions.

 (d) Impairment of Goodwill:

   Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication 
that the recoverable amount of a cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount 
based on a number of factors including operating results, business plans, future cash 
flows and economic conditions. The recoverable amount is determined based on higher 
value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. The goodwill impairment test is performed 
at the level of the cash generating unit or groups of cash generating units which are 
benefiting from the synergies of the acquisition and which represents the lower level at 
which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. i.e. Chemical Segment.

   Market related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount. 
Key assumptions on which management has based its determination of recoverable 
amount include estimated long term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital, and 
estimated operating margins. Cash flow projection takes into account past experience and 
represents management’s best estimate about future developments. (Refer Note 6)
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NOTE 3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Particulars Freehold 
Land

Buildings Plant and 
machinery

Data 
processing 
equipment

Electrical 
installation

Laboratory 
equipment

Furniture, 
fixture 

and office 
equipment

Vehicles Technical 
books

Total

Year ended March 31, 2020

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount  546.35  4,570.45  19,794.11  322.53  844.38  419.05  1,184.56  348.92  2.55  28,032.90 

Additions  —    95.59  6,140.08  32.80  378.72  103.11  218.29  14.49  —    6,983.08 

On account of business acquisition (Refer Note 47)  —    1,596.77  3,245.25  1.17  120.86  10.34  23.42  4.56  —    5,002.37 

Disposals  —    (0.12)  (174.21)  (9.30)  —    (3.43)  (50.81)  (15.42)  —    (253.29)

Closing gross carrying amount  546.35  6,262.69  29,005.23  347.20  1,343.96  529.07  1,375.46  352.55  2.55  39,765.06 

Accumulated depreciation

Opening accumulated depreciation  —    378.43  3,403.31  137.27  206.52  92.90  256.31  99.04  0.90  4,574.68 

Depreciation charge during the year  —    170.61  1,561.49  58.20  103.51  46.81  211.74  43.20  0.41  2,195.97 

Disposals  —    (0.12)  (141.58)  (9.06)  —    (1.03)  (49.60)  (5.72)  —    (207.11)

Closing accumulated depreciation  —    548.92  4,823.22  186.41  310.03  138.68  418.45  136.52  1.31  6,563.54 

Net carrying amount  546.35  5,713.77  24,182.01  160.79  1,033.93  390.39  957.01  216.03  1.24  33,201.52 

Particulars  Freehold 
Land 

 Buildings  Plant and 
machinery 

 Data 
processing 
equipment 

 Electrical 
installation 

 Laboratory 
equipment

 Furniture 
fixture 

and office 
equipment 

 Vehicles  Technical 
books 

 Total 

Year ended March 31, 2021

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount  546.35  6,262.69  29,005.23  347.20  1,343.96  529.07  1,375.46  352.55  2.55  39,765.06 

Additions  980.44  302.25  2,146.71  35.29  50.41  4.28  528.77  —    —    4,048.15 

Disposals —  —    (139.22)  (13.39)  —    —    (3.96)  (19.15)  —    (175.72)

Closing gross carrying amount  1,526.79  6,564.94  31,012.72  369.10  1,394.37  533.35  1,900.27  333.40  2.55  43,637.49 

Accumulated depreciation

Opening accumulated depreciation  —    548.92  4,823.22  186.41  310.03  138.68  418.45  136.52  1.31  6,563.54 

Depreciation charge during the year  —    204.61  1,956.86  60.24  123.43  49.01  186.14  41.68  0.26  2,622.23 

Disposals  —    —    (112.11)  (12.76)  —    —    (3.63)  (13.58)  —    (142.08)

Closing accumulated depreciation  —    753.53  6,667.97  233.89  433.46  187.69  600.96  164.62  1.57  9,043.69 

Net carrying amount  1,526.79  5,811.41  24,344.75  135.21  960.91  345.66  1,299.31  168.78  0.98  34,593.80 

Notes:

(a)  Buildings include cost of shares in co-operative housing societies INR 0.01 lakhs (Previous Year: INR 0.01 lakhs) and Freehold Land include cost of shares in co-operative Industrial Estate Limited INR 0.01 lakhs 
(Previous Year: INR Nil lakhs). 

(b)  Property, plant and equipment pledged as security    
 Refer Note 27 (c) for information on property, plant and equipment pledged as security by the Group.

(c)  Contractual obligations    
 Refer Note 50 (c) (i) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.    
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NOTE 4. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

 Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at  
March 31, 2020

 Building * 63.46  94.30 
 Land * 2,226.04  2,262.07 

Total  2,289.50  2,356.37 

*  Refer Note 56 for additional disclosure as per Ind AS 116

NOTE 5. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

  Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at  
March 31, 2020

  Gross carrying amount
  Opening gross carrying amount  159.53 159.53
  Disposals  (60.10) —

  Closing gross carrying amount  99.43  159.53 

  Accumulated depreciation

  Opening accumulated depreciation  17.40  14.18 
  Depreciation charge for the year  1.92  3.22 
  Disposals  (5.21) —
  Closing accumulated depreciation  14.11  17.40 

  Net carrying amount  85.32  142.13 

 (i) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss for investment properties

  Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at  
March 31, 2020

  Rental income from operating leases  54.80  44.54 
  Direct operating expenses for property that generated rental income  1.47  1.03 
  Direct operating expenses for property that did not generate rental income —    0.71 

  Profit from investment properties before depreciation  53.33  42.80 
  Depreciation  1.92  3.22 

  Profit from investment properties  51.41  39.58 

 (ii) Leasing arrangements

   Certain investment properties are leased to tenants under operating leases with rentals payable 
monthly. Minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases of 
investment properties are as follows:

  Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at  
March 31, 2020

  Within 1 year  53.85  43.58 

  Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years  82.39  82.26 

  Later than 5 years —   —

  Total  136.24  125.84 

 (iii) Fair value of investment properties

  Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at  
March 31, 2020

  Investment properties  631.99  714.74 

 (iv) Estimation of fair value
   The Group periodically obtains independent valuations for its investment properties. The best 

evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for similar properties.

   The fair values of investment properties have been determined by independent valuer who holds 
recognised and relevant professional qualification. 
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NOTE 6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

 Particulars 
 Computer 

software 
 Goodwill  Total 

 Year ended March 31, 2020 
 Gross carrying amount 
 Opening gross carrying amount  157.50  —    157.50 
 Additions  51.78  —    51.78 
 On account of business acquisition (Refer Note 47)  —    1,885.28  1,885.28 

 Closing gross carrying amount  209.28  1,885.28  2,094.56 

 Accumulated amortisation 
 Opening accumulated amortisation  125.51  —    125.51 
 Amortisation charge for the year  28.33  —    28.33 

 Closing accumulated amortisation  153.84  —    153.84 

 Closing Net carrying amount  55.44  1,885.28  1,940.72 

 Year ended March 31, 2021
 Gross carrying amount 
 Opening gross carrying amount  209.28  1,885.28  2,094.56 
 Additions  2.04  —    2.04 

 Closing gross carrying amount  211.32  1,885.28  2,096.60 

 Accumulated amortisation    
 Opening accumulated amortisation  153.84  —    153.84 
 Amortisation charge for the year  24.30  —    24.30 

 Closing accumulated amortisation  178.14  —    178.14 

  Closing net carrying amount  33.18  1,885.28  1,918.46 

 Impairment charges   
  The goodwill is tested for impairment annually. No impairment charges were identified for the year ended 

March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

 Significant Cash Generating Units (CGUs)
  The Group has identified its reportable segments, i.e. Chemical and Environment as the CGUs. The goodwill 

acquired through business combination has been allocated to CGU ‘Chemical’ segment of the Group. The 
carrying amount of goodwill is as under:

 Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at  

March 31, 2020
 Chemical  1,885.28  1,885.28 
  Total  1,885.28  1,885.28 

 Following key assumptions were considered while performing impairment testing   

  The recoverable amount of CGU has been calculated based on its value in use, estimated as the present value 
of projected future cash flows.

 Chemical segment
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at  

March 31, 2020
 Annual / Terminal Growth rate 4.00% 4.00%
 Weighted Average Cost of Capital % (WACC) post tax (Discount rate) 10.95% 10.95%
 Average segmental margin 49.75% 52.89%

  The projections cover a period of five years, as the Group believes this to be the most appropriate timescale 
over which to review and consider annual performances before applying a fixed terminal value multiple to the 
final year cash flows. The growth rates and segmental margins used to estimate cash flows for the first five 
years are based on past performance, and on the Group’s five-year strategic plan.

  Weighted Average Cost of Capital % (WACC) = Risk free return + (Market risk premium x Beta for the Company).

 Average segmental margins are based on FY 2020-21 performance

   The Group has performed sensitivity analysis around the base assumptions and has concluded that there are 
no reasonably possible changes to key assumptions that would cause the carrying amount of a CGU to exceed 
its recoverable amount. 
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NOTE 8. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

 Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at  

March 31, 2020

 Investment in Equity Instruments (fully paid-up)

 Quoted at FVOCI

584,977 (March 31, 2020: 584,977) Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up in Punjab Chemicals 
and Crop Protection Limited  5,120.01  1,823.37 

4,285 (March 31, 2020: 4,285) Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up in TIL Limited  6.50  4.27 

13,400 (March 31, 2020: 13,400) Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up in Bank of India  9.09  4.32 

6,198 (March 31, 2020: 6,198) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in Aimco Pesticides Limited  5.51  3.07 

1,000 (March 31, 2020: 1,000) Equity share of INR 2 each fully paid in Ajanta Pharma Limited  17.93  13.66 

702,703 (March 31, 2020: 702,703) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in Transpek Industry Limited  9,581.00  8,631.65 

14 (March 31, 2020: 14) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in Bayer Cropscience Limited  0.75  0.51 

40 (March 31, 2020: 40) Equity share of INR 2 each fully paid in Birla Precision Technologies Limited @  —    —   

3,500 (March 31, 2020: 3,500) Equity share of INR 1 each fully paid in Elgi Rubber Company Limited  0.93  0.39 

4,700 (March 31, 2020: 4,700) Equity Share of INR 10 each fully paid in Gujarat State Financial 
Corporation  0.17  0.06 

50,000 (March 31, 2020: 50,000) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in GTL Infrastructure Limited  0.38  0.11 

1,000 (March 31, 2020: 1,000) Equity share of INR 1 each fully paid in Hindalco Industries Limited  3.27  0.96 

250 (March 31, 2020: 250) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in Hester BioScience Limited  4.79  2.31 

100 (March 31, 2020: 100) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in Indokem Limited   0.01  0.01 

NOTE 7. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE

 Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at  

March 31, 2020

 Unquoted equity instruments at cost (Refer Note 48)

 Investments in associate
  3,998 (March 31, 2020: 3,998) Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up in Mobitrash Recycle Ventures 

Private Limited  0.40  0.40 
 Less : Share of loss on associate restricted to the carrying value of investment  (0.40)  (0.40)

— —
 Investment in joint venture
  468,000 (March 31, 2020: 468,000) Equity shares of Hongkong $ 1 each fully paid up in Wexsam 

Limited, Hong Kong  27.26  27.26 
 Less : Impairment in value of investment  (27.26)  (27.26)

 —    —   

 Total  —    —   

 Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments  —    —   

 Note: Wexsam Limited, Hong Kong, was dissolved on July 15, 2016 and is fully impaired in the financial statements.
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 Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at  

March 31, 2020

105,000 (March 31, 2020: 105,000) Equity share of INR 5 each fully paid in Navin Fluorine International Limited  2,887.54  1,285.83 

976,903 (March 31, 2020: 830,925) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in Tanfac Industries Limited  2,386.57  657.68 

100 (March 31, 2020: 100) Equity share of INR 2 each fully paid in Uniphos Enterprises Limited  0.09  0.04 

200 (March 31, 2020: 200) Equity share of INR 1 each fully paid in Vinati Organics Limited  2.80  1.54 

500 (March 31, 2020: 500) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in Aksharchem (India) Limited  1.17  0.76 

688 (March 31, 2020: 688) Equity share of INR 5 each fully paid in Alkyl Amines Chemicals Limited  39.15  8.29 

2,000 (March 31, 2020: 2,000) Equity share of INR 2 each fully paid in Amines & Plasticizers Limited  1.53  0.40 

471 (March 31, 2020: 471) Equity share of INR 2 each fully paid in Balaji Amines Limited  8.30  1.18 

250 (March 31, 2020: 250) Equity share of INR 2 each fully paid in Bodal Chemicals Limited  0.23  0.11 

2,500 (March 31, 2020: 2,500) Equity share of INR 1 each fully paid in Camlin Fine Sciences Limited  3.50  0.99 

1,000 (March 31, 2020: 1,000) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in Cosco (India) Limited  1.01  0.61 

250 (March 31, 2020: 250) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in Cosmo Films Limited  1.55  0.52 

27,699 (March 31, 2020: 27,699) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in Daikaffil Chemicals (India) Limited  7.42  4.88 

500 (March 31, 2020: 500) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in Deep Industries Limited  0.05  0.26 

500 (March 31, 2020: Nil) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in Deep Energy Resources Limited  0.17  —   

3,500 (March 31, 2020: 3,500) Equity share of INR 2 each fully paid in Deepak Nitrite Limited  57.99  13.54 

500 (March 31, 2020: 500) Equity share of INR 2 each fully paid in Graphite India Limited  2.56  0.64 

2,858 (March 31, 2020: 2,858) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in Indo Amines Limited  2.52  0.81 

500 (March 31, 2020: 500) Equity share of INR 5 each fully paid in Kabra Extrusion Techink Limited  0.90  0.22 

250 (March 31, 2020: 250) Equity share of INR 2 each fully paid in Lupin Limited  2.55  1.47 

4,000 (March 31, 2020: 4,000) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in Mangalam Organics Limited  20.72  7.11 

100 (March 31, 2020: 100) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in MPS Limited  0.47  0.20 

75 (March 31, 2020: 75) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in Nilkamal Limited  1.46  0.75 

7,500 (March 31, 2020: 1,000) Equity share of INR 5 each fully paid in Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited  1.92  1.12 

250 (March 31, 2020: 250) Equity share of INR 2 each fully paid in Sanghvi Movers Limited  0.25  0.12 

500 (March 31, 2020: 500) Equity share of INR 1 each fully paid in Skipper Limited 0.30 0.09

100 (March 31, 2020: 100) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in Talwalkar Better Value Fitness Limited #  —    —   

15,000 (March 31, 2020: 15,000) Equity share of INR 1 each fully paid in Thirumalai Chemicals Limited  12.83  5.30 

NOTE 8. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS (Contd.)
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 Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at  

March 31, 2020

2,500 (March 31, 2020: 2,500) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in Tinna Rubber and Infrastructure 
Limited  0.92  0.48 

2,050 (March 31, 2020: 2,050) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in Tina Trade Limited  0.31  0.43 

50 (March 31, 2020: 50) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in TVS Srichakra Limited  0.89  0.45 

1,500 (March 31, 2020: 1,500) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in Universal Starch Chem Allied 
Limited  1.02  0.29 

100 (March 31, 2020: 100) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in Talwalkars Healthclubs Limited $   —      —    

2,500 (March 31, 2020: 2,500) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in I G Petrochemicals Limited  10.36  2.32 

50,000 (March 31, 2020: 50,000) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in Jiya Eco Products Limited  2.31  3.49 

2,000 (March 31, 2020: 2,000) Equity share of INR 10 each fully paid in Star Paper Mills Limited  2.41  1.42 

 20,214.11  12,488.03 

Unquoted at FVOCI

920,500 (March 31, 2020: 920,500) Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up in TML Industries Limited   —      —    

1,067,450 (March 31, 2020: 1,067,450) Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up in Transpek-Silox 
Industry Private Limited  14,486.37  12,467.46 

2,500 (March 31, 2020: 2,500) Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up in The Saraswat Co-operative 
Bank Limited  0.25  0.25 

50,000 (March 31, 2020: 50,000) Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up in Biotech Consortium India 
Limited

 5.00  5.00 

1,000 (March 31, 2020: 1,000) Equity Shares of INR 10 each fully paid up in Alpic Finance Limited   —      —    

4,900 (March 31, 2020: 4,900) Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up in Ashok Organic Industries 
Limited 

  —      —    

5 (March 31, 2020: 5)  Equity shares of INR 5 each fully paid up in Syngenta India Limited   —      —    

420 (March 31, 2020: 420) Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up in Lloyds Finance Limited   —      —    

25,000 (March 31, 2020: Nil) Equity shares of INR 1 each fully paid up in National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited  264.74   —    

 14,756.36  12,472.71 

 Total  34,970.47  24,960.74 

 Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  14,756.36  12,472.71 

 Aggregate amount of quoted investments  20,214.11  12,488.03 

 @ Amount below rounding off norms as on March 31, 2021 - INR 400.80 (March 31, 2020 - INR 178.40)
 # Amount below rounding off norms as on March 31, 2020 - INR 145.00 (March 31, 2020 - INR 100.00)
 $ Amount below rounding off norms as on March 31, 2020 - INR 95.00 (March 31, 2020 - INR 79.00)

NOTE 9. LOANS – NON-CURRENT

 Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at  

March 31, 2020

 Unsecured considered good (unless otherwise stated)

 Loans to employees  5.14  7.27 

 Security deposits  617.48  527.12 

 Total  622.62  534.39 

NOTE 8. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS (Contd.)
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NOTE 10. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

 Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at  

March 31, 2020

 Unsecured considered good (unless otherwise stated)

 Margin money deposits with maturity of more than 12 months *  4.17  —   

 Total  4.17  —   

 * Refer Note 16

NOTE 11. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

 Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at  

March 31, 2020

 Unsecured considered good (unless otherwise stated)

 Capital advances

 Unsecured, considered good  125.87  89.63 

 Unsecured, considered doubtful  76.62  76.62 

 202.49  166.25 

 Provision for doubtful capital advances  (76.62)  (76.62)

 125.87  89.63 

 Prepaid expenses  41.58  38.75 

 Balances with Government Authorities  50.87  29.54 

 Total  218.32  157.92 

NOTE 12. INVENTORIES

 Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at  

March 31, 2020

 Raw materials [including stock-in-transit INR 742.15 lakhs (March 31, 2020: INR 456.00 lakhs)]  1,960.48  2,126.04 

 Packing materials  145.44  128.29 

 Finished goods  1,693.54  2,068.90 

 Work-in-progress  2,427.77  2,820.27 

 Traded goods  103.86  129.96 

 Stores and spares (including fuel and coal)  566.02  498.51 

 Total  6,897.11  7,771.97 

 Refer Note 1(L) for basis of valuation.

 Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss:

  Inventory write downs are accounted, considering the nature of inventory, ageing, liquidation plan  
and net realisable value. Writedowns of inventories as at year end amounted to INR 118.25 lakhs  
(as at March 31, 2020 - INR 67.06 lakhs). These writedowns were recognised as an expense and 
included in ‘changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress’ in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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NOTE 13. CURRENT INVESTMENTS

 Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at  

March 31, 2020
 Investments in Mutual Funds

 Quoted at FVPL

 Nippon India Mutual Fund 2.906 (March 31, 2020: 7.464) units of INR 100 fully paid up 0.02 0.07

 Reliance ETF Liquid BeEs 179.013 (March 31, 2020: 176.355) units of INR 100 fully paid up 1.80 1.76

1.82 1.83

 Unquoted at FVPL
Kotak Medium Term Fund - Growth - Regular Plan - 784,562.245 (March 31, 2020: 784,562.245)  
units of INR 10 fully paid up  136.03  127.82 
Edelweiss Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Daily Dividend 1,869.270 (March 31, 2020: 1,807.055)  
units of INR 1,000 fully paid up  18.75  18.12 
Kotak Liquid - Direct Plan - Daily Dividend 1,204.917 (March 31, 2020: 1,166.404) units of INR  
1,000 fully paid up  14.73  14.26 
Kotak Equity Arbitrage Fund - Deposit Plan - Monthly Dividend 7,935,960.977 (March 31, 2020: 
8,142,779.359) units of INR 10 fully paid up  886.40  905.23 
Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund - Growth - Regular Plan 2,916.045 (March 31, 2020: 1,382.836) units of 
INR 10 fully paid up  9.60  4.39 
ASK India 2025 Equity Fund 10,403.007 (March 31, 2020: 10,403.007) units of INR 10 fully paid up  141.23  88.12 
IDFC Low Duration Fund - Growth (Regular Plan) 38,170.726 (March 31, 2020: 15,875.106) units of  
INR 10 fully paid up  11.54  4.54 
IDFC Arbitrage Fund - Monthly Dividend - (Regular Plan) 23,72,127.685 (March 31, 2020: 23,72,127.685) 
units of INR 10 fully paid up  304.42  301.75 
IIFL Equity Opportunities Fund Class-A 499,975.001 (March 31, 2020: Nil) units of INR 10 fully paid up  50.69 —   

 1,573.39  1,464.23 

 Total  1,575.21  1,466.06 

 Aggregate amount of quoted investments  1.82  1.83 

 Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  1,573.39  1,464.23 

NOTE 14. TRADE RECEIVABLES

 Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at  
March 31, 2020

 Trade receivables from related parties (Refer Note 49)  38.73  27.47 

 Other trade receivables  17,514.07  15,076.29 

 Less: Allowance for doubtful debts / Expected credit loss  288.89  134.25 

 Total  17,263.91  14,969.51 

 Current portion  17,263.91  14,969.51 

 Non-current portion —   —   

 Break-up of security details

 Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at  

March 31, 2020

 Secured, considered good —   —   

 Unsecured, considered good  17,263.91  14,969.51 

 Doubtful  288.89  134.25 

 Total  17,552.80  15,103.76 

 Less : Allowance for doubtful debts / Expected credit loss  (288.89)  (134.25)

 Total  17,263.91  14,969.51 

 Note: For credit risk and provision for loss allowance (Refer Note 44)
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NOTE 15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at  

March 31, 2020
 Balances with Banks:
  In Current accounts  523.28  2,084.34 
 Cash on Hand  0.82  8.03 
 Deposits with maturity of less than three months  3,710.75 —

 Total  4,234.85  2,092.37 

 Note:  There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the 
reporting period and prior periods.

NOTE 16. BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at  

March 31, 2020
 Margin money deposits (Refer Note below)  262.63  37.60 
 Unclaimed dividend account  82.02  96.93 
 Deposits with maturity of more than three months and less than 12 months  626.62  15.55 

 Total  971.27  150.08 

 Notes:  Margin money deposits of INR 266.80 lakhs (March 31, 2020: INR 37.60 lakhs) have been given 
against Letter of Credit, Bank guarantees and other deposits. (also Refer Note 10)

NOTE 17. LOANS – CURRENT

 Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at  

March 31, 2020
 Unsecured considered good (unless otherwise stated)
 Loans to a related party (Refer Note 49)  100.00  100.00 
 Loans to employees  34.51  16.51 
 Security deposits  94.39  106.67 

 Total  228.90  223.18 

NOTE 18. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

 Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at  

March 31, 2020
 Unsecured considered good (unless otherwise stated)
 Interest accrued #  32.41  32.66 
 Foreign exchange forward contracts  2.02  44.98 
 Others  51.07  15.94 

 Total  85.50  93.58 

 # Receivable from a Related Party - INR 1.21 lakhs (Previous year - INR 3.08 lakhs)

NOTE 19. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

 Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at  

March 31, 2020
 Unsecured considered good (unless otherwise stated)
 Balances with Government Authorities  17.17  204.36 
 Prepaid expenses  228.19  219.38 
 Advances to suppliers
 Unsecured considered good  963.73  340.54 
 Unsecured considered doubtful  83.78 —   

 1,047.51  340.54 
 Provision for doubtful advances  (83.78) —   

963.73 340.54
 Export benefits receivable  452.58  401.23 
 Others  1.00  89.08 

 Total  1,662.67  1,254.59 
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NOTE 20. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

 Particulars No. of shares Amount

 Authorised shares 

 As at March 31, 2021

 Equity shares of INR 5/- each  38,000,000  1,900.00 

 11% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of INR 10/- each  850,000  85.00 

 Unclassified Shares of INR 5/- each  300,000  15.00 

 As at March 31, 2020

 Equity shares of INR 5/- each  38,000,000  1,900.00 

 11% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of INR 10/- each  850,000  85.00 

 Unclassified Shares of INR 5/- each  300,000  15.00 

 Issued, subscribed and paid-up

 As at March 31, 2021

 Equity shares of INR 5/- each fully paid-up  12,570,692  628.53 

 Total  12,570,692  628.53 

 As at March 31, 2020

 Equity shares of INR 5/- each fully paid-up  12,570,692  628.53 

 Total  12,570,692  628.53 

(i) Movement in Equity Share Capital

Equity Shares As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Nos. Amount Nos. Amount

At the beginning of the year  12,570,692  628.53  12,570,692  628.53 

Outstanding at the end of the year  12,570,692  628.53  12,570,692  628.53 

(ii) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having par value of  INR 5 per 
share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The 
Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed 
by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of Interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the Group, the holders of equity shares will be 
entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all 
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of 
equity shares held by the shareholders.
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(iii) Details of shares held by shareholders holding 
more than 5% shares in the Group:

Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Nos. of Shares % of holding Nos. of Shares % of holding

Anshul Specialty Molecules Private Limited  5,358,682 42.63%  5,358,682 42.63%

Life Insurance Corporation of India  888,463 7.07%  888,463 7.07%

(iv) Disclosure for shares of the company held by 
parent / ultimate parent company :

Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Nos. of Shares % of holding Nos. of Shares % of holding

Anshul Specialty Molecules Private Limited  5,358,682 42.63%  5,358,682 42.63%

Note 21. OTHER EQUITY

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Capital reserve  0.01  0.01 

Securities premium  534.37  534.37 

Capital redemption reserve  16.77  16.77 

Statutory reserve  500.59  498.40 

General reserve  39,587.32  34,587.32 

Retained earnings  17,836.55  15,800.47 

Other reserves  26,049.91  18,023.09 

Total  84,525.52  69,460.43 

(i) Capital reserve

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Opening balance 0.01  0.01 

Closing balance  0.01  0.01 

(ii) Securities premium

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Opening balance  534.37  534.37 

Closing balance  534.37  534.37 

(iii) Capital redemption reserve

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Opening balance  16.77 16.77

Closing balance  16.77 16.77

(iv) Statutory reserve

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Opening balance  498.40  450.86 

Add : Amount transferred from retained earnings  2.19  47.54 

Closing balance  500.59  498.40 

NOTE 20. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Contd.)
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(v) General reserve

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at 
 March 31, 2020

Opening balance   34,587.32  29,587.32 

Add: Amount transferred from retained earnings  5,000.00 5000.00

Closing balance  39,587.32  34,587.32 

(vi) Retained earnings

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at 
 March 31, 2020

Opening balance  15,800.47  15,765.82 

Profit for the year  7,108.59  9,607.25 

Dividend paid —  (3,614.07)

Dividend distribution tax —  (742.88)

Transfer to general reserve  (5,000.00)  (5,000.00)

Transfer to statutory reserve  (2.19)  (47.54)

Items of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) recognised directly in retained earnings:

— Remeasurement of post employment benefits obligations (net of tax)  (70.32)  (168.11)

Closing balance  17,836.55  15,800.47 

(vii) Other reserves – FVOCI – Equity Investments

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at 
 March 31, 2020

Opening balance  18,023.09  22,972.72 

Change in fair value of FVOCI equity investments (Refer Note 8)  9,529.80  (6,962.69)

Tax on above  (1,502.98)  2,013.06 

 8,026.82  (4,949.63)

Closing balance  26,049.91  18,023.09 

Nature and purpose of reserves

Capital reserve
Capital reserve is utilised in accordance with provision of the Act.

Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Capital redemption reserve
Represent reserve created during buy back of Equity Shares and it is a non-distributable reserve.

General reserve
The General Reserve is used from time to time to record transfer of profit from retained earnings, for 
appropriation purposes. As general reserve is created by transfer from one component of equity to 
another and it is not an item of other comprehensive income.

Other reserves – FVOCI – Equity Investments
The Group has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity 
securities in Other Comprehensive Income. These changes are accumulated within FVOCI equity 
investments reserve within equity. The Group transfers amounts from this reserve to retained 
earnings when the relevant equity securities are derecognised.

Statutory reserve
The statutory reserve represents fund created out of profit of the year in accordance with requirement 
of Section 45IC(1) of Reserve Bank of India act, 1934.

Note 21. OTHER EQUITY (Contd.)
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Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at  
March 31, 2020

Term loan (Secured)

From others
Vehicle loan from a financial institution  0.55  2.12 

Total  0.55  2.12 

Notes:
(a)  Term loans under vehicle finance from a financial institution amounting to INR 2.12 lakhs (March 31, 

2020: INR 6.25 lakhs) carrying interest rate ranging from 12% to 14% per annum repayable in 
equated monthly instalments and secured by hypothecation of the vehicles acquired by utilising the 
said loans.

(b)  Installments falling due within a year in respect of all the above Loans aggregating INR 1.57 lakhs 
(March 31, 2020: INR 4.13 lakhs) have been grouped under “Current maturities of long-term debt” 
(Refer Note 30)

(c) Refer Note 44(B) for liquidity risk.

(d)  The carrying amounts of financial and non financial assets as security for secured borrowings are 
disclosed in Note 27 (c).

(e)  Refer Note 27 (d) net debt reconciliation.

NOTE 23. LEASE LIABILITIES – NON-CURRENT 

 Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at 
 March 31, 2020

 Lease liabilities (Refer Note 56)  217.33  251.05 

 Total  217.33  251.05 

NOTE 24. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

 Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at 
 March 31, 2020

 Deferred consideration (Refer Note 47) — 889.19

 Total — 889.19

NOTE 25. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - NON-CURRENT

 Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at 
 March 31, 2020

 Provision for employee benefit obligations (Refer Note 42)

 Leave obligation  1,139.19  1,088.99 

 Medical voluntary retirement scheme  102.16  114.64 

 Long service award  55.10  69.78 

 Total  1,296.45  1,273.41 

NOTE 22. NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS
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NOTE 26.  TAXATION

 (a) Income tax expense

  Particulars Year ended 
 March 31, 2021

Year ended 
 March 31, 2020

  Current tax
  Current tax on profits for the year  2,169.43  2,635.64 
  Adjustments for current tax of prior periods  (3.29)  3.23 

  Total current tax expense  2,166.14  2,638.87 

  Deferred tax  806.24  (755.53)

  Total deferred tax expense/(benefit)  806.24  (755.53)

  Total Income tax expense  2,972.38  1,883.34 

 (b) Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by statutory tax rates:

  Particulars Year ended 
 March 31, 2021

Year ended 
 March 31, 2020

  Profit before tax  10,080.97  11,490.59 

  Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25.168% (previous year 25.168%)  2,537.18  2,891.95 
  Add / (less) effects of :
  Exempt income  (93.73)  (153.41)
  One time deferred tax credit on transition to new tax regime * —  (796.59)
  Expenses disallowed  90.48  80.42 
  Deferred tax on goodwill **  351.03 —

  Adjustment to current tax of prior periods  84.31  (3.23)
  Others  3.11  (135.80)

  Income tax expense 2,972.38 1,883.34

   * Pursuant to the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019, the Company has decided to opt 
for the reduced tax rate and hence, the current tax and deferred tax has been computed based 
on the revised rate inclusive of surcharge and cess (i.e. 25.17%). Accordingly, the Company has 
recognised current tax and deferred tax expenses for the year ended March 31, 2020 on the revised 
rate and accounted for deferred tax credit of INR 796.59 lakhs on account of re-measurement of net 
deferred tax liabilities as at March 31, 2019.

   ** Finance Bill enacted in March 2021 has disallowed depreciation on goodwill retrospectively 
from April 1, 2020 for the purpose of tax deduction and Accordingly, the Company has accounted 
for deferred tax charge for the year ended March 31, 2021 amounting to INR 351.03 lakhs being the 
deferred tax liabilities on difference between book base and tax base of goodwill.

 (c)  Deferred tax:
  The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

  Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2021 

As at 
 March 31, 2020

  Deferred tax assets
  Liabilities / provisions that are deducted for tax purposes when paid  400.37  535.91 
  Provision for doubtful receivables and advances  113.02  51.08 
  Other timing differences (net)  (39.60)  84.11 

  Total deferred tax assets  473.79  671.10 

  Deferred tax liabilities
   Additional depreciation/amortisation on tangible and intangible assets for tax purposes due to 

higher tax depreciation rate  3,770.60  3,185.32 
  Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income  5,407.76  3,904.78 

  Total deferred tax liabilities  9,178.36  7,090.10 

  Net deferred tax liabilities  8,704.57  6,419.00 
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 Movement in deferred tax assets / (liabilities):

 Particulars As at 
March 31, 

2020 

Charged/ 
(credited) to 

profit and loss

Charged/ 
(credited) to 

OCI

As at  
March 31, 

2021

 For the year ended March 31, 2021

 Liabilities / provisions that are deducted for tax purposes when paid  535.91  159.19  (23.65)  400.37 

 Provision for doubtful receivables and advances  51.08  (61.94)   —     113.02 

  Additional depreciation/amortisation on tangible and intangible assets for tax 
purposes due to higher tax depreciation rate  (3,185.32)  585.28   —     (3,770.60)

 Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income  (3,904.78)   —     1,502.98  (5,407.76)

 Other timing differences (net)  84.11  123.71   —     (39.60)

 Total Deferred tax assets / (liabilities)  (6,419.00)  806.24  1,479.33  (8,704.57)

 Particulars  As at 
 March 31, 

2019 

 Addition on 
business 

combination 

Charged/ 
(credited) to 

profit and loss

Charged/ 
(credited) to 

OCI

As at  
March 31, 

2020

  For the year ended March 31, 2020

  Liabilities / provisions that are deducted for tax purposes when paid  537.49   —     58.12  (56.54)  535.91 

  Provision for doubtful receivables and advances  95.31   —     44.23   —     51.08 

  Additional depreciation/amortisation on tangible and intangible assets for tax 
purposes due to higher tax depreciation rate  (3,194.40)  479.11  (488.19)   —     (3,185.32)

  Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income  (5,917.84)   —      —     (2,013.06)  (3,904.78)

  Other timing differences (net)  (285.58)   —     (369.69)   —     84.11 

 Total Deferred tax assets / (liabilities)  (8,765.02)  479.11  (755.53)  (2,069.60)  (6,419.00)

NOTE 27. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

Secured
Cash credits  15.90  1,067.35 
Post shipment banking facility —  170.98 

Unsecured
Post shipment banking facility  591.22  887.82 

Total  607.12  2,126.15 

Notes:

(a)  Cash credit loan from banks are secured by hypothecation of all tangible movable assets both present 
and future including stock of raw materials, finished goods, goods in process, stores and trade 
receivables etc. and is further secured by a second charge on the immovable property at Roha and 
Lote Parashuram. The cash credit loan is repayable on demand and carries interest rates at 7.55% to 
9.00% (March 31, 2020 - 9.00% to 10.85%).

(b)  Post shipment banking facility amounting to INR Nil (March 31, 2020 INR 170.98 lakhs) is repayable 
within 30 to 120 days and are secured against assets as mentioned in point (a) above and carries 
interest rate of LIBOR + 3%. Post shipment banking facility amounting to INR 591.21 lakhs (March 31, 
2020 INR 887.82 lakhs) is repayable within 30 to 120 days and are unsecured and carries interest rate 
of LIBOR + 1.5%.

(c)  The carrying amounts of financial and non financial assets hypothecated / mortgaged as security for 
current and non-current borrowings are as under:

NOTE 26.  TAXATION (Contd.)
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 Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at  
March 31, 2020

 Current Assets

  Financial Assets
   Trade receivables  17,264.02  14,972.97 

  Non Financial Assets

   Inventories  6,897.11  7,771.97 

 Total Current Assets Pledged as Security  24,161.13  22,744.94 

 Non Current Assets

 Right of use assets  198.02  201.70 

 Freehold land  140.81  140.81 

 Buildings  3,064.26  2,886.77 

 Plant and machinery  20,706.95  20,476.23 

 Other Property plant and equipment  1,326.01  1,485.63 

 Total Non - current assets pledged as security  25,436.05  25,191.14 

 Total assets pledged as security  49,597.18  47,936.08 

The Excel Industries Limited is in the process of satisfaction of charge created on certain assets, in respect 
of loans which were repaid in the earlier year.

(d) Net debt reconciliation

 Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2021

As at  
March 31, 2020

 Cash and cash equivalents  (4,234.85)  (2,092.37)

 Current investments in mutual funds  (1,575.21)  (1,466.06)

 Non-current borrowings (Including current maturities)  2.12  6.25 

 Current borrowings  607.12  2,126.15 

 Interest payable on above borrowings —  0.06 

 Net debt  (5,200.82)  (1,425.97)

Particulars  Other assets  Liabilities from financing activities 

Cash and cash 
equivalents

Current 
investments

 Non-current 
borrowings 

 Current 
borrowings 

 Interest 
payable on 
borrowings 

Net debt as at March 31, 2020  (2,092.37)  (1,466.06)  6.25  2,126.15  0.06 

Cash flows  (2,142.48)   —      —      —      —    

Purchase of investments   —     (92.22)   —      —      —    

Sales of investments   —     50.00   —      —      —    

Fair value adjustments and gain on 
investments  —     (66.93)   —      —      —    
Repayment of loan   —      —     (4.13)  (1,519.03)   —    

Interest expenses   —      —      —      —     108.79 

Interest paid   —      —      —      —     (108.85)

Net debt as at March 31, 2021  (4,234.85)  (1,575.21)  2.12  607.12   —    

NOTE 27. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS (Contd.)
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Particulars  Other assets Liabilities from financing activities

Cash and cash 
equivalents

Current 
investments

 Non-current 
borrowings 

 Current 
borrowings 

 Interest 
payable on 
borrowings 

Net debt as at March 31, 2019  (358.94)  (7,652.59)  89.51  615.38  0.24 

Cash flows  (1,733.43)   —      —      —      —    

Purchase of investments   —     (7,010.26)   —      —      —    

Sales of investments   —     13,235.03   —      —      —    

Fair value adjustments and gain on 
investments

  —     (38.24)   —      —      —    

Repayment of loan   —      —     (83.26)  1,510.77   —    

Interest expenses   —      —      —      —     190.84 

Interest paid   —      —      —      —     (191.02)

Net debt as at March 31, 2020  (2,092.37)  (1,466.06)  6.25  2,126.15  0.06 

NOTE 28. TRADE PAYABLES

 Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at 
 March 31, 2020

 Total Outstanding due of micro and small enterprises  1,160.87  666.57 

 Total Outstanding due of creditors other than micro and small enterprises  11,139.76  9,824.20 

 Total  12,300.63  10,490.77 

 Notes:

 (a)  The Group has certain payables to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED Act’). The disclosure pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as 
follows.

  Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at 
 March 31, 2020

   Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end  1,160.87  666.57 
   Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end — —

   Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day 
during the year  40.53  96.65 

   Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED 
Act, beyond the appointed day during the year — —

   Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, 
beyond the appointed day during the year  3.30 —

   Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments already 
made  0.08  2.94 

  Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years  0.02  0.30 

 (b)  Refer Note 44 for information about liquidity risk and market risk of trade payables.

NOTE 29. LEASE LIABILITIES – CURRENT

 Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at 
 March 31, 2020

 Lease liabilities (Refer Note 56)  33.73  28.52 

 Total  33.73  28.52 

NOTE 27. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS (Contd.)
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NOTE 30. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

 Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at 
 March 31, 2020

 Current maturities of long term debt (Refer Note (b) below)  1.57  4.13 

 Interest accrued and due —  0.06 

 Unclaimed dividend  82.02  96.93 

 Unclaimed matured fixed deposits  5.33  5.81 

 Unclaimed interest on matured fixed deposits  1.73  2.22 

 Creditors for capital goods  395.74  329.29 

 Sundry deposits  17.10  15.10 

 Foreign exchange forward contracts —  3.39 

 Deferred consideration (Refer Note 47)  958.85  732.45 

 Others  89.76  61.60 

 Total  1,552.10  1,250.98 

 Notes:

 (a)  There are no amounts due for payment to the Investor Education and Protection Fund Under Section 
125 of the Companies Act, 2013 as at the year end. 

 (b)  Current maturities of long term debt includes amount due in next 12 months from various term 
loans and deposits as under (Refer Note 22):

 Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at 
 March 31, 2020

  From others
  Vehicle loan from a financial institution  1.57  4.13 

  Total  1.57  4.13 

NOTE 31. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - CURRENT

 Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at 
 March 31, 2020

 Provision for employee benefit obligations (Refer Note 42)

 Leave obligation  106.66  116.37 

 Gratuity  560.49  510.55 

 Medical voluntary retirement scheme  44.20  37.58 

 Long service award  24.58  14.28 

 Total  735.93  678.78 

NOTE 32. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

 Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at 
 March 31, 2020

 Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted at sources  223.13  106.03 

 Advances from customers  104.35  111.06 

 Other payables  4.20  12.82 

 Total  331.68  229.91 
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NOTE 33. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

 Particulars  Year ended 
 March 31, 2021 

 Year ended 
 March 31, 2020

 Revenue from contracts with customers:   

 a) Sale of products   

 Finished Goods (Refer note below)  71,806.50  66,994.09 

 Traded Goods  1,386.42  1,537.73 

 b) Sale of services   

 Processing charges  567.69  240.52 

 Others  640.42  714.22 

 74,401.03  69,486.56 

 Other operating revenue:

 a) Export incentives  289.82  466.16 

 b) Scrap sales  255.75  295.72 

 545.57  761.88 

 Total  74,946.60  70,248.44 

 Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated based on geography:

 - Domestic  61,844.27  53,372.62 

 - Exports  13,102.33  16,875.82 

 Total  74,946.60  70,248.44 

 Reconciliation of Gross revenue with the revenue from contracts with customers

 Particulars  Year ended 
 March 31, 2021 

 Year ended 
 March 31, 2020

 Gross Revenue  75,114.08  70,488.42 

 Less: Discounts  167.48  239.98 

 Net revenue recognised from contracts with customers  74,946.60  70,248.44 

Notes:

(a)  The Group does not have any remaining performance obligation as contracts entered for sale of  
goods are for a shorter duration.

(b)  There are no material contracts for sale of services wherein, performance obligation is unsatisfied to which  
transaction price has been allocated.

NOTE 34. OTHER INCOME

 Particulars  Year ended 
 March 31, 2021 

 Year ended 
 March 31, 2020

 Interest income on

 Bank deposits  130.58  5.39 

 Inter corporate deposit  12.30  33.16 

 Others  23.03  36.59 

 165.91  75.14 

 Dividend income

 From long term investments (Refer Note below)  341.82  309.91 

 From current investments  67.71  547.62 

 409.53  857.53 
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 Particulars  Year ended 
 March 31, 2021 

 Year ended 
 March 31, 2020

 Others

 Rent (Refer Note 5)  65.10  55.59 

 Gain on fair valuation of current investments  66.93  5.87 

 Profit on sale of current investments —  32.37 

 Net Profit on disposal of property  137.05 —

 Others  96.80  57.48 

 365.88  151.31 

 Total  941.32  1,083.98 

Note:

All dividends from equity investments designated at FVOCI relate to investments held at the end of the reporting period.

NOTE 35. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

 Particulars  Year ended 
 March 31, 2021 

 Year ended 
 March 31, 2020

 a. Raw materials

 Inventory at the beginning of the year  1,670.04  2,066.21 

 Add: On account of business acquisition (Refer Note 47) —  34.52 

 Add : Purchases  34,032.34  31,226.92 

 35,702.38  33,327.65 

 Less : Inventory at the end of the year  1,218.33  1,670.04 

 Total cost of Raw materials consumed  34,484.05  31,657.61 

 b.  Packing materials

 Inventory at the beginning of the year  128.29  133.09 

 Add: On account of business acquisition (Refer Note 47) —  0.54 

 Add : Purchases  1,437.54  1,465.66 

 1,565.83  1,599.29 

 Less : Inventory at the end of the year  145.44  128.29 

 Total cost of Packing materials consumed  1,420.39  1,471.00 

 Total  35,904.44  33,128.61 

NOTE 36. PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE

 Particulars  Year ended 
 March 31, 2021

 Year ended 
 March 31, 2020

 Chemicals and others  223.21  503.49 

 Total  223.21  503.49 

NOTE 34. OTHER INCOME (Contd.)
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NOTE 37.  (INCREASE)/DECREASE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,  
WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE

 Particulars  Year ended 
 March 31, 2021 

 Year ended 
 March 31, 2020

 Inventories at the end of the year

 Finished goods  1,693.54  2,068.90 

 Work-in-progress  2,427.77  2,820.27 

 Stock-in-trade  103.86  129.96 

 4,225.17  5,019.13 

 Inventories at the beginning of the year

 Finished goods  2,068.90  1,836.81 

 Work-in-progress  2,820.27  2,004.14 

 Stock in trade  129.96  164.14 

 Add: On account of business acquisition (Refer Note 47) —  239.14 

 5,019.13  4,244.23 

 Total  793.96  (774.90)

NOTE 38. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

 Particulars  Year ended 
 March 31, 2021 

 Year ended 
 March 31, 2020

 Salaries, wages and bonus  7,611.94  7,146.47 

 Contribution to provident and other funds  544.29  522.45 

 Provision/ payment of gratuity (Refer note 42)  272.10  243.21 

 Workman and staff welfare expenses  509.74  548.50 

 Total  8,938.07  8,460.63 

NOTE 39. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES

 Particulars  Year ended 
 March 31, 2021 

 Year ended 
 March 31, 2020

 Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 3)  2,622.23  2,195.97 

 Depreciation on Right of use assets (Refer Note 56)  66.87  50.53 

 Depreciation on Investment property (Refer Note 5)  1.92  3.22 

 Amortisation of Intangible assets (Refer Note 6)  24.30  28.33 

 Total  2,715.32  2,278.05 
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NOTE 40. OTHER EXPENSES

 Particulars  Year ended 
 March 31, 2021 

Year ended 
 March 31, 2020

 Consumption of stores and spares  88.40  60.91 

 Processing charges  103.88  179.95 

 Power and fuel  5,600.38  5,262.86 

 Effluent expenses  1,416.39  1,277.40 

 Rent (Refer Note 56)  433.76  295.60 

 Rates and taxes  99.62  78.31 

 Bank charges  84.41  124.08 

 Contractor's labour charges  432.29  278.94 

 Water charges  268.76  232.76 

 Sales commission  151.38  113.92 

 Insurance  295.12  249.29 

 Repairs and maintenance on :

  Plant and machinery  1,967.77  1,916.39 

  Buildings  68.90  84.92 

  Others  133.17  194.80 

 CSR expenditure (Refer Note 52)  296.31  258.07 

 Travelling and conveyance  87.07  290.26 

 Legal and professional fees  1,117.44  1,129.21 

 Directors' sitting fees (Refer Note 49)  22.90  20.00 

 Non Executive Directors' Commission (Refer Note 49)  68.00  68.00 

 Auditor's Remuneration (Refer details below)  54.84  55.71 

 Bad debts / sundry debit balances written off (net):

  Bad Debts written off during the year —  7.93

  Less: Utilisation from Provision for doubtful debts — —  (7.93) —

 Expected credit loss / Provision for doubtful receivables (net)  154.64  (53.95)

 Provision for doubtful advances to supplier  83.78  -   

 Freight outward and forwarding expenses  2,542.47  2,122.13 

 Charity and donations  63.16  217.99 

 Net foreign exchange loss  149.27  15.12 

 Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  38.58  42.10 

 Miscellaneous expenses  1,191.38  1,475.42 

 Total  17,014.07  15,990.19 
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NOTE 41. FINANCE COSTS

 Particulars  Year ended 
 March 31, 2021 

 Year ended 
 March 31, 2020

 Interest  68.46  147.59 

 Interest on lease liabilities (Refer Note 56)  21.88  16.03 

 Other borrowing costs  40.33  33.24 

 Interest on deferred consideration (Refer Note 47)  87.21  58.90 

 Total  217.88  255.76 

NOTE 42. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

 (i) Leave Obligation
  The Leave Obligation cover Group’s liability for earned leave. Amount recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

  Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2021

As at 
 March 31, 2020

  Obligation not expected to be settled within next 12 months (non - current)  1,139.19  1,088.99 

  Obligation expected to be settled within next 12 months (current)  106.66  116.37 

  Total  1,245.85  1,205.36 

 (ii) Long Service Award
   The Group provides for long service award to eligible employees upon achievement of certain years of service. Amount recognised in the balance 

sheet is as under:

  Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2021

As at 
 March 31, 2020

  Obligation not expected to be settled within next 12 months (non - current)  55.10  69.78 

  Obligation expected to be settled within next 12 months (current)  24.58  14.28 

  Total  79.68  84.06 

 (iii) Gratuity
  (a)  The Group provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period 

of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity is calculated at specified number of days (15 days/22 days) of last drawn salary 
depending upon the tenure of service for each year of completed service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan.

  (b) The amounts recognised in balance sheet and the movement in the gratuity over the year are as follows:

Particulars  Fair value of Plan 
Assets 

 Present Value of 
Obligations 

 Net amount 

Balance as at March 31, 2019  4,040.72  4,201.59  160.87 

Current service cost   —     230.80  230.80 

Interest expense or cost   —     324.21  324.21 

Investment income  311.80   —     (311.80)

Total amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss  311.80  555.01  243.21 

Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:

– change in financial assumptions   —     (186.11)  (186.11)

– experience variance   —     411.12  411.12 

–  return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net 
interest expense  1.18   —     (1.18)

Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income  1.18  225.01  223.83 
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Particulars  Fair value of Plan 
Assets 

 Present Value of 
Obligations 

 Net amount 

Benefits paid   —     (247.54)  (247.54)

Employer's contribution  104.72   —     (104.72)

Benefits paid  (234.90)   —     234.90 

Balance as at March 31, 2020  4,223.52  4,734.07  510.55 

Current service cost   —     237.97  237.97 

Interest expense or cost   —     314.59  314.59 

Investment income  280.46   —     (280.46)

Total amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss  280.46  552.56  272.10 

Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:

– change in financial assumptions   —     (32.75)  (32.75)

– experience variance   —     136.50  136.50 

–  return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net 
interest expense   —      —      —    

Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income   —     103.75  103.75 

Benefits paid   —     (322.12)  (322.12)

Employer’s contribution  306.17   —     (306.17)

Benefits paid  (302.38)   —     302.38 

Balance as at March 31, 2021  4,507.77  5,068.26  560.49 

  (c) The net liability disclosed above related to funded and unfunded plans are as follows:

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at  
March 31, 2020

Present value of funded obligation  5,068.26  4,734.07 

Fair value of plan assets  4,507.77  4,223.52 

Deficit of funded plan  560.49  510.55 

Unfunded plans — —

Deficit of Gratuity plan  560.49  510.55 

  (d) Assumptions:
   The principal financial assumptions used in valuation of Gratuity are as follows: 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at  
March 31, 2020

Discount rate (per annum) 6.75% 6.65%

Salary growth rate (per annum) * 4.00% for first year 
and 7.00% thereafter

4.00% for first two 
years and 7.00% 

thereafter

Attrition rate (derived based on age) 1.00% to 5.00% 1.00% to 5.00%

Mortality rate 100% of Indian 
Assured Lives 

Mortality (2012-14)

100% of Indian 
Assured Lives 

Mortality (2012-14)

    *The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion, and other relevant 
factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market. (The expected rate of return on plan assets  is based  on the current 
portfolio of assets, investment strategy and market scenario.)

NOTE 42. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Contd.)
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  (e) The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

 Change in 
Assumption 

Increase in 
Rate /  

Increase 
(Decrease) in 

DBO 

Decrease in 
Rate /  

Decrease 
(Increase) in 

DBO

Change in 
Assumption 

Increase in 
Rate /  

Increase 
(Decrease) in 

DBO

Decrease in 
Rate /  

Decrease 
(Increase) in 

DBO

Discount rate 1.00% -6.10% 6.90% 1.00% -6.30% 7.20%

Salary growth rate 1.00% 7.40% -6.70% 1.00% 7.70% -7.00%

Attrition rate @ 50.00% -0.30% 0.40% 50.00% -0.30% 0.30%

    @ Represent increase or decrease in Attrition rate by 50%

    The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely 
to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to 
significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit 
method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the Balance Sheet.

   The method and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to prior period.

  (f) The major categories of plan assets are as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

 Amount  %  Amount  % 

Insurer Managed funds  4,507.77 100%  4,223.52 100%

  (g) Defined benefit liability and employer contributions:

    The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 7 years (March 31, 2020 - 7 years). The expected maturity analysis of 
undiscounted gratuity is as follows:

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at  
March 31, 2020

1 year  830.30  769.26 

2-5 years  1,567.44  1,347.23 

6-10 years  2,773.81  2,540.01 

More than 10 years  3,448.32  3,445.25 

 (iv) MEDICAL VOLUNTARY RETIREMENT SCHEME (MVRS):

  (a)  The Group also has a defined benefit plan for its employees, viz., voluntary early separation scheme on account of continued ill-health not 
amounting to occupational disease and thereby unable to perform normal duties of their post. Under the Scheme, the benefits will be given for a 
retired employee for a maximum period upto 10 years or age of retirement, whichever is earlier. In case of early death of the employee, the legal 
heir of the employee shall get 50% of separation benefit for the rest of the benefit period. The costs of providing benefits under the said plan is 
determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end. Separate actuarial valuation is carried out for the plan using the projected unit 
credit method. Actuarial gains and losses for the defined benefit plan is recognised in full in the period in which they occur in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. This Scheme is not funded.

  (b) The amounts recognised in balance sheet and the movement in the obligation over the year are as follows:

Particulars Amount

Balance as at March 31, 2019  160.91 

Current service cost  21.86 

Interest expense or cost  12.41 

Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from: —

– change in financial assumptions —

– experience variance —

Total amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss  34.27 

NOTE 42. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Contd.)
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Particulars Amount

Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:
– change in financial assumptions  4.13 
– experience variance  (3.31)

Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income  0.82 

Benefits paid  (43.78)

Balance as at March 31, 2020  152.22 

Current service cost  31.72 
Interest expense or cost  10.12 
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:
– change in financial assumptions —
– experience variance —

Total amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss  41.84 

Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:

– change in financial assumptions  (0.36)

– experience variance  (9.42)

Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income  (9.78)

Benefits paid  (37.92)

Balance as at March 31, 2021  146.36 

  (c) Assumptions:
   The principal financial assumptions used in valuation of MVRS are as follows: 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at  
March 31, 2020

Discount rate (per annum) 6.75% 6.65%
Mortality rate 100% (of LIC 96-98 mod ultimate)

  (d) The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

 Change in 
Assumption 

Increase in 
Rate /  

Increase 
(Decrease) in 

DBO

Decrease in 
Rate /  

Decrease 
(Increase) in 

DBO

 Change in 
Assumption 

Increase in 
Rate /  

Increase 
(Decrease) in 

DBO

Decrease in 
Rate /  

Decrease 
(Increase) in 

DBO

Discount Rate 1.00% -2.40% 2.50% 1.00% -2.60% 2.70%

 (v) Defined Contribution Plan:
   The Group has certain defined contribution plans such as provident fund, super annuation fund and family pension fund for the benefit of the 

employees. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employee at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The Contributions are 
made to registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no 
further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expenses recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan is INR 544.29 lakhs 
(March 31, 2020 - INR 522.45 lakhs).

 (vi) Risk Exposure for Gratuity (funded plan):

  Through its defined benefit plans, the Group is exposed to number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

  Assets Volatility:   The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets under perform 
this yield, this will create a deficit. Most of the plan assets has investments in insurer managed funds. Hence, assets are 
considered to be secured.

  Change in bond yields:  A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in value of plans 
bond holdings.

NOTE 42. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Contd.)
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NOTE 43. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
 (i) Financial instruments by category

Particulars Note As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

 FVOCI  FVPL  Amortised 
cost 

 FVOCI  FVPL  Amortised 
cost 

Financial assets

Equity investments 8  34,970.47   —      —     24,960.74   —      —    

Investments in mutual funds 13   —     1,575.21   —      —     1,466.06   —    

Trade receivables 14   —      —     17,263.91   —      —     14,969.51 

Cash and cash equivalents 15   —      —     4,234.85   —      —     2,092.37 

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 16   —      —     971.27   —      —     150.08 

Loans 9 and 17   —      —     851.52   —      —     757.57 

Other financial assets 10 and 18   —     2.02  87.65   —     44.98  48.60 

Total financial assets   34,970.47  1,577.23  23,409.20  24,960.74  1,511.04  18,018.13 

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 22 and 27   —      —     607.67   —      —     2,128.27 

Lease liabilities 23 and 29   —      —     251.06   —      —     279.57 

Trade payables 28   —      —     12,300.63   —      —     10,490.77 

Deferred consideration 24 and 30   —     958.85   —      —     1,621.64   —    

Other financial liabilities 24 and 30   —      —     593.25   —     3.39  515.14 

Total financial liabilities    —     958.85  13,752.61   —     1,625.03  13,413.75 

 (ii) Fair value hierarchy
   This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and 

measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication 
about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under 
the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

Financial asset and liabilities measured at fair 
value - recurring fair value measurements:

Notes  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

As at March 31, 2021
Financial Asset
Financial Investment at FVOCI
Equity investments 8  20,214.11  14,756.36   —     34,970.47 
Financial Investment at FVPL
Investments in mutual funds  13  1,575.21   —      —     1,575.21 
Other financial assets 18   —     2.02   —     2.02 
Total Financial Assets   21,789.32  14,758.38   —     36,547.70 
Financial Liabilities
Deferred consideration 24 and 30   —     958.85   —     958.85 
Total Financial Liabilities    —     958.85   —     958.85 

Financial asset and liabilities measured at fair 
value - recurring fair value measurements:

Notes  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

As at March 31, 2020
Financial Asset
Financial Investment at FVOCI
Equity investments 8  12,488.03  12,472.71   —     24,960.74 
Financial Investment at FVPL
Investments in mutual funds 13  1,466.06   —      —     1,466.06 
Other financial assets 18   —     44.98   —     44.98 
Total Financial Assets   13,954.09  12,517.69   —     26,471.78 
Financial Liabilities
Deferred consideration 24 and 30   —     1,621.64   —     1,621.64 
Other financial liabilities 24 and 30   —     3.39   —     3.39 
Total Financial Liabilities    —     1,625.03   —     1,625.03 
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   The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note above has been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the 
valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) 
and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). The categories used are as follows:

  Level 1:  Financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, traded bonds, mutual funds, bonds and 
debentures, that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is 
valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV published by mutual fund.

  Level 2:  The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined 
using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. 
If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is considered here. For example, the fair value 
of forward exchange contracts, currency swaps and interest rate swaps is determined by discounting estimated future cash flows using a 
risk-free interest rate.

  Level 3:  The fair value of financial instruments that are measured on the basis of entity specific valuations using inputs that are not based on 
observable market data (unobservable inputs). When the fair value of unquoted instruments cannot be measured with sufficient reliability, 
the Group carries such instruments at cost less impairment, if applicable.

 (iii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

  Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

  •  Investments in quoted equity instruments are valued using the closing price at Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange 
(NSE) at the reporting period.

  •  the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates as at the balance sheet date, prevailing with 
Authorised Dealers dealing in foreign exchange.

  •   the use of Net Assets Value (‘NAV’) for valuation of mutual fund investment. NAV represents the price at which the issuer will issue further units 
and will redeem such units of mutual fund to and from the investors.

  •  the fair value of deferred consideration is determined based on present value computed using discount rate on transaction date. 

 (iv) Fair value measurements using “significant observable inputs (level 2)”
  The following table presents the changes in level 2 items for the periods ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020:

  Particulars Unquoted equity shares  Total 

  As at March 31, 2019  14,754.54  14,754.54 

  Gain/(loss) recognised in other comprehensive income (Refer note 8)  (2,281.83)  (2,281.83)

  As at March 31, 2020  12,472.71  12,472.71 

  Acquisitions  264.74  264.74 

  Gain/(loss) recognised in other comprehensive income (Refer note 8)  2,018.91  2,018.91 

  As at March 31, 2021  14,756.36  14,756.36 

   Unrealised gain/(loss) recognised in profit and loss related to assets and liabilities held 
at the end of reporting period

  Year ended March 31, 2021 — —

  Year ended March 31, 2020 — —

 (v) Fair value inputs and relationships to fair value

   The following table summarises the Quontitative information about the significant observable inputs used in level 2 fair value measurements. 
See (vi) above for the valuation techniques adopted.

Particulars Fair Value as at  Significant 
observable  

inputs 

 Probability-weighted range Sensitivity 

 March 31, 
2021 

 March 31, 
2020 

 March 31, 
2021 

 March 31, 
2020

Unquoted 
equity shares 14,491.62 12,472.71  EBITDA 

Multiple 5% 5%

2021: Increased EBITDA multiple 5% 
would increase FV by INR 625.53; 

decreased EBITDA multiple -5% would 
decrease FV by INR 625.53.

2020: Increased EBITDA multiple 5% 
would increase FV by INR 546.43; 

decreased EBITDA multiple -5% would 
decrease FV by INR 546.43.

NOTE 43. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Contd.)
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 (vi)  Valuation process

   The procedures used in evaluation of unlisted equity securities in the main level 2 by the Group are derived and evaluated as follow:

  –  The value of equity shares of the Company is derived from valuations of comparable Companies, as manifested through stock market valuation 
of listed companies. This valuation is based on the principle that market valuations taking place between informed buyers and informed sellers 
incorporate all factors relevant to valuation.

  –  used the profitability-based valuation multiple of comparable listed companies for the purpose of analysis. 

  –  maintainable operating EBITDA has been computed considering its performance for the year end, and adjustments as appropriate for non-
operating income and expenses. 

  –  value arrived as above under Comparable Company Market Multiples Method (‘CCM’) is adjusted, as appropriate, for surplus assets, (cash and 
cash equivalent, investments, interest accrued on deposits), borrowings (including stretched creditors), surplus assets, deferred tax assets, 
contingent liabilities and other matters. The total value is then divided by the entity’s shares outstanding as at the year end, to arrive at the value 
per equity share.

 (vii)  Fair value of Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

Particulars Notes As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020

 Carrying 
Amount 

 Fair Value  Carrying 
Amount 

 Fair Value 

Financial Assets

Trade receivables 14  17,263.91  17,263.91  14,969.51  14,969.51 

Cash and cash equivalents 15  4,234.85  4,234.85  2,092.37  2,092.37 

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 16  971.27  971.27  150.08  150.08 

Loans 9 and 17  851.52  851.52  757.57  757.57 

Other financial assets 10 and 18  87.65  87.65  48.60  48.60 

Total Financial Assets   23,409.20  23,409.20  18,018.13  18,018.13 

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 22 and 27  607.67  607.67  2,128.27  2,128.27 

Lease liabilities 23 and 29  251.06  251.06  279.57  279.57 

Trade payables 28  12,300.63  12,300.63  10,490.77  10,490.77 

Other financial liabilities 24 and 30  593.25  593.25  515.14  515.14 

Total Financial Liabilities   13,752.61  13,752.61  13,413.75  13,413.75 

   The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances, loans and other financial assets and 
liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values due to their short-term nature. The carrying amount of long term borrowings is not expected 
be materially different than their fair values.

NOTE 44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

  In the course of its business, the Group is exposed to a number of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. This note presents the Group’s 
objectives, policies and processes for managing its financial risk. The key risks and mitigating actions are also placed before the Board of Directors of the 
Company. The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and 
controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions 
and the Group’s activities.

  The Group manages the risk through the finance department that ensures that the Group’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and 
procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group’s policies and risk objectives. The activities are 
designed to:

 – protect the Group’s financial results and position from financial risks;

 – maintain market risks within acceptable parameters, while optimising returns; and

 – protect the Group’s financial investments, while maximising returns.

 The note explains the Group’s exposure to financial risks and how these risks could affect the Group’s future financial performance.

NOTE 43. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Contd.)
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 (A) Credit Risk
   Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. Credit risks from balances with banks and 

financial institutions are managed in accordance with the Group’s policy. For derivative and financial instruments, the Group attempts to limit the credit 
risk by only dealing with reputable banks and financial institutions having high credit ratings assigned by the credit rating agencies. The Group periodically 
assesses financial reliability of customers and other counter parties, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of 
historical bad debts and ageing of financial assets. Individual risk limits are set and periodically reviewed on the basis of such information.

   The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on 
an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Group compares the risk of a 
default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and 
supportive forwarding-looking information. The outstanding trade receivables are regularly monitored and appropriate action is taken for collection of 
overdue receivables.

  In respect of its investments the Group aims to minimize its financial credit risk through the application of risk management principles.

  The gross carrying amount of trade receivables is INR 17,552.80 Lakhs (March 31, 2020: INR 15,103.76 Lakhs)

  Reconciliation of loss allowance provision- Trade receivables

  Particular Year ended 
March 31, 2021

 Year ended 
 March 31, 2020

  Loss allowance at the beginning of the year  134.25  196.13 

  Less: Provision write off / (utilised) —  7.93 

  Add: Additional Provision made / (reversal)  154.64  (53.95)

  Loss allowance at the end of the year 288.89 134.25

   The Group maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with banks, investments Loans, Security deposits and other financial assets.

   Security deposits are interest free deposits given by the Group for properties taken on lease. Provision is taken on a case to case basis depending on 
circumstances with respect to non recoverability of the amount. The gross carrying amount of Security deposit is INR 711.87 lakhs (March 31, 2020: 
INR 633.79 lakhs)

   Other advances are given for trade purpose which is in line with normal business activities of the Group. Provision is taken on a case to case basis 
depending on circumstances with respect to non recoverability of the amount. The gross carrying amount of capital advances is INR 202.49 lakhs 
(March 31, 2020: INR 166.25 lakhs)

  Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Capital advances

  Particular  Year ended 
 March 31, 2021

 Year ended 
 March 31, 2020

  Loss allowance at the beginning of the year  76.62 76.62 

  Loss allowance at the end of the year  76.62  76.62 

 (B) Liquidity risk
   Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering 

cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach for managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when 
they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking manage to Group’s reputation. In addition, 
processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by the senior management. The management monitors the Group’s net liquidity position 
through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

  Maturities of financial liabilities

Particular Note Less than  
1 year

1 year to  
2 year

2 year to  
3 year

3 year and  
above

Total

As at March 31, 2021
Borrowings 22 and 27  607.12  0.55   —      —     607.67 
Lease liabilities 23 and 29  33.73  39.19  0.23  177.91  251.06 
Trade payables 28  12,300.63   —      —      —     12,300.63 
Deferred consideration 24 and 30  958.85   —      —      —     958.85 
Other financial liabilities 30  593.25   —      —      —     593.25 
Total non-derivative liabilities  14,493.58  39.74  0.23  177.91  14,711.46 
Forward contracts for hedge purpose 30   —      —      —      —      —    
Total derivative liabilities   —      —      —      —      —    

NOTE 44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd.)
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NOTE 44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd.)

Particular Note Less than  
1 year

1 year to  
2 year

2 year to  
3 year

3 year and  
above

Total

As at March 31, 2020

 Borrowings 22 and 27  2,126.15  2.12   —      —     2,128.27 

 Lease liabilities 23 and 29  28.52  33.73  39.19  178.13  279.57 

 Trade payables 28  10,490.77   —      —      —     10,490.77 

Deferred consideration 24 and 30  732.45  889.19   —      —     1,621.64 

 Other financial liabilities 30  515.14   —      —      —     515.14 

Total   13,893.03  925.04  39.19  178.13  15,035.39 
Forward contracts for hedge purpose 30  3.39   —      —      —     3.39 
Total derivative liabilities   3.39   —      —      —     3.39 

 (C) Market risk

   The Group is exposed to risk from movements in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and market prices that affect its assets, liabilities and 
future transactions.

  (i) Foreign exchange risk
    Foreign currency risk is that risk in which the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 

exchange rates. The Group operates internationally and a portion of its business is transacted in multiple currencies and therefore the Group is 
exposed to foreign exchange risk through its overseas sales and purchases in various foreign currencies. The Group takes decision to hedge by 
forming view after discussions with it’s advisors and as per policies set by Management.

   Foreign exchange derivatives and exposures outstanding as at Balance Sheet date

   The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period as on March 31, 2021

Particular Currency In INR Lakhs In Foreign Currency 
in Lakhs  

Financial assets
Export receivables USD  1,442.46  19.73 
 EURO  801.58  9.35 
Bank balances USD  1.46  0.02 
Derivative asset
Foreign exchange forwards USD  677.00  9.26 

Financial liabilities
Import payables USD  2,734.31  37.40 
Derivative liabilities
Foreign exchange forwards USD  1,220.94  16.70 

   The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period as on March 31, 2020

Particular Currency In INR Lakhs In Foreign Currency 
in Lakhs  

Financial assets
Export receivables USD  2,216.67  29.29 
 EURO  592.59  7.15 
Bank balances USD  1.51  0.02 
Derivative asset
Foreign exchange forwards USD  43.89  0.58 
Foreign exchange forwards EURO  99.46  1.20 
Financial liabilities
Import payables USD  2,763.83  36.52 

Derivative liabilities

Foreign exchange forwards USD  1,987.36  26.26 
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   Foreign Currency Risk Sensitivity
   A change of 5% in Foreign Currency would have the following impact on profit before tax

Particular Increase in FC conversion rate Decrease in FC conversion rate

Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Year ended 
March 31, 2020

USD  (64.52)  (27.28)  64.52  27.28 

EURO  40.08  29.63  (40.08)  (29.63)

Increase / (decrease) in profit or loss  (24.44)  2.35  24.44  (2.35)

  (ii) Interest rate risk
    Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

    The Group borrows at variable as well as fixed interest rates and the same is managed by the Group by constantly monitoring the trends and expectations. 
In order to reduce the overall interest cost, the Group has borrowed in a mix of short term and long term loans.

   Exposure to interest rate risk

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at  
March 31, 2020

Variable rate borrowings  607.12  2,126.15 

Fixed rate borrowings  2.12  6.25 

Total borrowings  609.24  2,132.40 

   Interest rate sensitivity

   A change of 50bps in interest rates would have following impact on profit before tax

Particulars Year ended  
March 31, 2021

Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Interest rates - increase by 50 basis point (50 bps)  (3.05)  (10.66)

Interest rates - decrease by 50 basis point (50 bps)  3.05  10.66 

  (iii) Price Risk
    The Group’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held by the Group and classified in the balance sheet as fair value 

through OCI.

   To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Group diversifies its portfolio.

Particular Impact on profit after tax

Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Year ended 
March 31, 2020

NSE/BSE increase in 1% of price/NAV 

 Investments in quoted equity shares  202.14  124.88 

 Investments in mutual fund  15.75  14.66 

NSE/BSE decrease in 1% of price/NAV   

 Investments in quoted equity shares  (202.14)  (124.88)

 Investments in mutual fund  (15.75)  (14.66)

NOTE 44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd.)
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NOTE 45. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

 (a) Risk Managements
   The Group’s aim to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to its shareholders.

   The Group’s capital management is driven by Group’s policy to maintain a sound capital base to support the continued development of its business. 
The Board of Directors seeks to maintain a prudent balance between different components of the Group’s capital. The Management monitors the capital 
structure and the net financial debt at individual currency level. Net financial debt is defined as current and non-current financial liabilities less cash and 
cash equivalents and short-term investments. 

   The Group’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market 
confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. The Group will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, 
its capital structure.

  The debt equity ratio highlights the ability of a business to repay its debts. As at  March 31, 2021, the ratio was -6.11% (March 31, 2020 -2.03%)

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Net Debt  (5,200.82)  (1,425.97)

Total Equity  85,154.05  70,088.96 

Net debt to equity ratio -6.11% -2.03%

 (b) Dividend

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

(i) Equity Shares

 Final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2019 - INR 18.75 per fully paid equity share —  2,357.00 

 Dividend distribution tax on above —  484.49 

  Interim Dividend for the year ended March 31, 2020 - INR 10.00 per fully paid equity 
share declared on March 9, 2020. —  1,257.07 

 Dividend distribution tax on above —  258.39 

 Final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2020 - INR Nil per fully paid equity share — —

 Dividend distribution tax on above — —

(ii) Dividend not Recognised at the end of reporting period

  In addition to the above dividends, at year end the directors have recommended the 
payment of final dividend of INR 11.25 per fully paid equity share (March 31, 2020 - INR 
Nil). This proposed dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing 
annual general meeting  1,414.20 —

 Dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend — —

NOTE 46. SEGMENT INFORMATION

 (a) Description of segments and principal activities
   Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) of 

the Group. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the 
Executive Chairman and Managing Director of the Company. The Group operates in following business segment as per Indian Accounting Standard 
108 “operating segments”:

  (a) Chemicals - Comprising of Industrial and Specialty Chemicals, Pesticides Intermediates, Polymer and Pharma Intermediates

  (b) Environment - Comprising of Soil enricher, Bio - pesticides and other Bio products (E&BT).
  Segment revenue includes sales, export incentives, processing charges, scrap sales and other income from operations
  Segment Revenue in the geographical segments considered for disclosure are as follows :

  (a) Revenue within India includes sales to customers located within India.

  (b) Revenue outside India includes sales to customers located outside India.

   Segment Revenue, Results, Assets and Liabilities includes the respective amounts identifiable to each of segments and amounts allocated on a 
reasonable basis.
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 (b) Segment Result:

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2021 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Segment Results (Profit before tax and interest)

Chemicals  13,080.08  15,106.40 

Environment and Biotech  8.25  52.57 

Total Segment Result  13,088.33  15,158.97 

Less: Finance Cost  217.88  255.76 

Other un-allocable expenditure (net of unallocable income)  2,789.48  3,412.62 

Profit before tax  10,080.97  11,490.59 

 (c) Segment Revenue:

  The segment revenue is measured in the same way as in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2021 

 Year ended  
March 31, 2020

Segment Revenue (Revenue from operations)

Chemicals  72,993.84  68,470.45 

Environment and Biotech  1,952.76  1,777.99 

Total Segment Revenue  74,946.60  70,248.44 

Less: Inter segment revenue — —

Total Segment Revenue  74,946.60  70,248.44 

Revenue from external customers: 

India  61,844.27  53,372.62 

Other countries  13,102.33  16,875.82 

Total Segment Revenue  74,946.60  70,248.44 

 (d) Segment Assets:
   Segment assets are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These assets are allocated based on the operations of the segment and 

the physical location of the asset.

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2021 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Segment Assets:

Chemicals  61,441.26  58,492.61 

Environment and Biotech  1,375.66  1,382.18 

Unallocated  48,298.00  33,859.77 

Total Assets as per balance sheet  111,114.92  93,734.56 

Total assets of Group broken down by location of the assets, is shown below:

India 108,869.42  90,923.79 

Other countries  2,245.50  2,810.77 

Total Assets  111,114.92  93,734.56 

NOTE 46. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd.)
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 (e) Segment Liabilities:
  Segment liabilities are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These liabilities are allocated based on the operations of the segment.

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2021 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2020 

Segment Liabilities:

Chemicals  12,824.58  12,894.61 

Environment and Biotech  235.16  361.33 

Unallocated  12,901.13  10,389.66 

Total liabilities as per balance sheet  25,960.87  23,645.60 

Total liabilities of Group broken down by location of the liabilities, is shown below:

India  23,226.56  20,881.77 

Other countries  2,734.31  2,763.83 

Total Liabilities  25,960.87  23,645.60 

   The Group does not have any customer accounting for more than 10% of the group’s total revenue for the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 
2020.

NOTE 47. ACQUISITION OF CHEMICAL MANUFACTURING UNIT AT VISAKHAPATNAM

   During the previous year, the Group has acquired a chemical manufacturing unit located at Visakhapatnam in Andhra Pradesh Special Economic Zone, 
as a going concern by way of slump sale with effect from October 25, 2019. Accordingly, the financial statements of previous year include impact of 
this acquisition with effect from October 25, 2019 and hence not comparable with the current year.

   The Group has measured the acquired business of Seller at fair value determined in accordance with Ind AS 103 “Business Combination”.

  Details of the Purchase consideration, the net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

Particulars  Amounts  Amounts 

Total purchase consideration   8,710.64 

Assets acquired  7,789.54  

Liabilities acquired (Including deferred tax liabilities of INR 479.11 lakhs)  964.18  

Net identifiable assets acquired at fair value  6,825.36

Goodwill arising on acquisition   1,885.28 

   The Goodwill of Rs. 1,885.28 Lakh comprises the value of expected synergies arising from the acquisition, trained manpower, ready to use 
manufacturing facility with requisite statutory approvals and availability of surplus land for future expansion, which has not been separately recognised.

   There were no acquisition in the year ended March 31, 2021

NOTE 48. INTEREST IN OTHER ENTITIES
 (a) Subsidiaries
   The group’s subsidiaries are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of equity shares that are held directly 

by the group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting rights held by the group. The country of incorporation or registration is 
also their principal place of business.

Name of the entity Place of business / 
incorporation

Ownership interest held by the 
Company as at

Ownership interest held by non controlling 
interests as at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Excel Bio Resources Limited India 100% 100% 100% 100%

Kamaljyot Investments Limited # India 100% 100% 100% 100%

  #   The Directions under Chapter IV, Paragraph 70, and Chapter V of Master Directions - Non Banking Financial Company - Non Systematically 
Important Non Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 issued by the Reserve Bank of India on September 1, 2016 and as 
updated on February 17, 2020, is not applicable to Kamaljyot Investments Limited (“Kamaljyot”) since it has not accessed any public Funds 
and do not have any customer Interface. Hence, in our opinion the Kamaljyot need not comply with the prudential norms relating to income 
recognition, accounting standards, asset classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as applicable in terms of Non-Banking 
financial company- Non Systematically important Non Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

NOTE 46. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd.)
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 (b) Non - Controlling Interest (NCI)
  No NCI as group is holding 100% ownership in all subsidiaries.

 (c) Interest in Associate and Joint Venture

Name of the entity Place of 
business / 
incorporation

% of 
ownership 

interest

Relationship Accounting 
method

Carrying Amount as at (In Lakhs)

March 31, 
2021

March 31, 
2020

MobiTrash Recycle Ventures 
Private Limited* India 39.98% Associate Equity Method — —

Wexam Limited, Hongkong** Hong Kong 33% Joint Venture Equity Method — —

*  Gross Investment value is INR 0.40 Lakhs (March 31, 2020 INR 0.40 Lakhs) and the same is fully adjusted from share of loss from associates 
(Refer Note 7).

**  There were no activities in Wexsam Limited, Hong Kong for past many years. Further, this entity was dissolved on July 15, 2016 and accordingly, 
the proportionate interest of the group in the said jointly controlled entity has not been considered in the consolidated financial statements. 
Further, the Group does not have any liability or contingent liability, which needs to be accounted with respect to the said jointly controlled 
entity (Refer Note 7).

NOTE 49. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES AS PER IND AS 24
 1. Name of related parties and nature of relationship:
  (a) Parent entity
   The Group is controlled by the following entity:

Name Type Place of 
incorporation

Ownership interest as at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Anshul Specialty Molecules Private Limited Immediate and 
Ultimate Parent 

Company
India

42.63% 42.63%

  (b) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
  — Executive Directors
   Mr. Ashwin C. Shroff (Executive Chairman w.e.f. September 3, 2019 - Chairman and Managing Director up to September 2, 2019) 
    Late Mrs. Usha A. Shroff (Executive Vice Chairperson upto April 29, 2019) 
    Mr. Ravi A. Shroff (Managing Director w.e.f. September 3, 2019 - Executive Director up to September 2, 2019) 
    Mr. Hrishit A. Shroff (Executive Director w.e.f. June 27, 2019)  
  — Non - Executive Directors (Independent Directors)
   Mr. R. N. Bhogale (Independent Director) 
   Mr. H. N. Motiwala (Independent Director) 
   Mr. P. S. Jhaveri (Independent Director)  
   Mr. M. B. Parekh (Independent Director) 
   Mr. S. S. Vaidya (Independent Director) 
   Mr. R. M. Pandia (Independent Director) 
   Mr. Dipesh K. Shroff (Non - Executive Director) 
   Mr. Atul G. Shroff (Non - Executive Director) 
   Mrs. Dr. Meena A. Galliara (Non - Executive Director w.e.f. June 27, 2019) 
   Mr. R. K. Sood (Nominee Director - LIC upto November 11, 2019) 
   Mr. P. K. Molri (Nominee Director - LIC w.e.f. February 7, 2020)
  (c) Relatives of KMP with whom transactions have taken place:
   Mrs. Anshul A. Bhatia (Daughter of Mr. Ashwin C. Shroff and Mrs. Usha A. Shroff) 
  (d) Enterprise over which KMP or their relative have significant influence and transactions have taken place:
   Agrocel Industries Private Limited
   Divakar Techno Specialities & Chemicals Private Limited 
   Development & Eco-Friendly Enterprises
   Mobitrash Recycle Ventures Private Limited *

NOTE 48. INTEREST IN OTHER ENTITIES (Contd.)
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   Shree Vivekanand Research and Training Institute
   C C Shroff Research Institute
   Transpek Industry (Europe) Limited
   Transpek Industry Limited
   TML Industries Limited
   Indian Centre for Climate and Societal Impact Research
   C C Shroff Self Help Centre
   Rashtriya Seva Trust
   Shrujan Trust
   Shrujan Creations
   Shroff Family Charitable Trust
   * also an associate company

  (e) Other related parties with whom there are transactions during the year:
   Excel Industries Limited, Employees Group Gratuity Fund - Post-employment benefits plan

 2. Related Party Transaction
 (a) - Transactions carried out with related parties referred in 1 above, in ordinary course of business:

Particulars
Sale of 
goods

 Sale of 
services 

Interest 
received

Purchase 
of traded 

goods

 Purchase 
of Services 

Dividend 
Paid

Sales com-
mission

Contribution 
to fund

Salary, Bonus, 
contribution 

to  PF & 
Commission 

Director's 
Sitting 

fees

CSR / 
Donation  
Expendi-

ture 

Parent entity           

Anshul Specialty Molecules Private Limited

 26.65  47.41  —     —     1.86  —     —     —     —     —     —    

 6.07  37.01  —     0.01  —     1,540.62  —     —     —     —     —    

Enterprises owned or significantly 
influenced by key management person-
nel or their relatives

          

Agrocel Industries Private Limited
 3.95  —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

 2.31  8.58  —     7.74  —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

Transpek Industry Limited
 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

 3.26  —     —     —     —     45.04  —     —     —     —     —    

Divakar Techno Specialities  & Chemicals 
Private Limited

 —     —     —     —     —     —     21.03  —     —     —     —    

 —     —     —     —     —     —     26.15  —     —     —     —    

C C Shroff Research Institute
 —     0.14  —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

 —     0.13  —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

C C Shroff Self Help Centre
 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

 —     —     —     0.85  —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

Transpek Industry (Europe) Limited
 —     —     —     —     20.44  —     —     —     —     —     —    

 —     —     —     —     13.14  —     —     —     —     —     —    

Mobitrash Recycle Ventures Private Limited  
 —     0.51  —     1.85  —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

 0.51  0.66  —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

TML Industries Limited
 —     —     12.30  —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

 19.34  —     12.33  —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

Shree Vivekanand Research and Training 
Institute

 0.37  —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     221.50 

 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     211.74 

Rashtriya Seva Trust
 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     2.50 

Shroff Family Charitable Trust
 —     3.68  —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

 —     3.50  —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     80.00 

Shrujan Trust
 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     12.75 

NOTE 49. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES AS PER IND AS 24 (Contd.)
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Particulars
Sale of 
goods

 Sale of 
services 

Interest 
received

Purchase 
of traded 

goods

 Purchase 
of Services 

Dividend 
Paid

Sales com-
mission

Contribution 
to fund

Salary, Bonus, 
contribution 

to  PF & 
Commission 

Director's 
Sitting 

fees

CSR / 
Donation  
Expendi-

ture 

Shrujan Creations
 —     —     —     0.08  —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

 —     —     —     1.56  —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

Development & Eco-Friendly Enterprises
 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     5.00 

 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

Indian Centre for Climate and Societal 
Impact Research

 —     —     —     —     1.20  —     —     —     —     —     40.00 

 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

Other related parties with whom there 
are transactions during the year:

Excel Industries Limited, Employees Group 
Gratuity Fund

 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     306.17  —     —     —    

 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     104.72  —     —     —    

Key management personnel and their 
relatives

Mr. Ashwin C. Shroff 
 0.03  —     —     —     —     —     —     —     231.09  —     —    

 1.86  —     —     —     —     23.88  —     —     213.50  —     —    

Mrs. Usha A. Shroff
 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

 —     —     —     —     —     1.87  —     —     32.90  —     —    

Mr. Ravi A. Shroff
 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     272.58  —     —    

 —     —     —     —     —     13.71  —     —     239.00  —     —    

Mr. Hrishit A. Shroff
 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     117.66  —     —    

 —     —     —     —     —     13.70  —     —     166.55  —     —    

Mr. R. N. Bhogale
 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     8.00  3.60  —    

 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     8.00  3.30  —    

Mr. H. N. Motiwala
 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     8.00  4.10  —    

 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     8.00  4.50  —    

Mr. P. S. Jhaveri
 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     8.00  2.80  —    

 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     8.00  3.00  —    

Mr. M. B. Parekh
 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     6.00  1.60  —    

 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     6.00  0.80  —    

Mr. S. S. Vaidya
 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     6.00  1.60  —    

 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     6.00  1.00  —    

Mr. R. M. Pandia
 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     8.00  3.30  —    

 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     8.00  2.60  —    

Mr. Dipesh K. Shroff
 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     6.00  1.60  —    

 —     —     —     —     —     2.48  —     —     6.00  1.30  —    

Mr. Atul G. Shroff
 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     6.00  1.20  —    

 —     —     —     —     —     17.19  —     —     6.00  1.20  —    

Dr. Meena Galliara
 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     6.00  1.90  —    

 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     6.00  1.20  —    

Mr. R. K. Sood
 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     0.80  —    

Mr. P. K. Molri
 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     6.00  1.20  —    

 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     6.00  0.20  —    

Mrs. Anshul A. Bhatia
 —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

 —     —     —     —     —     6.21  —     —     —     —     —    

Amount in bold represent the amount of March 31, 2021 and amount in italics represent amount of March 31, 2020.

*  The remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are not determinable. Further, 
remuneration key managerial personnel includes INR 24.24 lakhs (March 31, 2020: INR 51.68 lakhs) towards contribution to provident fund and other funds.

NOTE 49. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES AS PER IND AS 24 (Contd.)
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 2. (b) Loans and advances in the nature of loans to related parties:

    Disclosure for loans and advances in terms of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015.

Particulars Purpose of Loan As at  
March 31, 2021

As at  
March 31, 2020

Loans to - TML Industries Limited (by subsidiaries)

Balance as at year end Business Purpose  100.00  100.00 

Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year  100.00  100.00 

 3. Outstanding Balances

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at  
March 31, 2020

The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to 
transactions with related parties

Receivables:
Anshul Specialty Molecules Private Limited  36.97  15.08 
C C Shroff Research Institute  0.22  0.08 
Mobitrash Recycle Ventures Private Limited —  2.64 
Agrocel Industries Private Limited  10.50  18.39 
TML Industries Limited  101.21  103.08 
Shroff Family Charitable Trust  1.04  1.28 

Payables:

Anshul Specialty Molecules Private Limited  0.95 — 
Divakar Techno Specialities & Chemicals Private Limited  30.51  10.23 
Transpek Industry (Europe) Limited  8.24  5.66 
Mobitrash Recycle Ventures Private Limited  1.96  0.11 
Mr. Ashwin C. Shroff  103.27  69.34 
Mr. Ravi A. Shroff  154.90  76.16 
Mr. Hrishit. A. Shroff  51.63  39.21 
Mr. R. N. Bhogale  8.00  8.00 
Mr. H. N. Motiwala  8.00  8.00 
Mr. P. S. Jhaveri  8.00  8.00 
Mr. M. B. Parekh  6.00  6.00 
Mr. S. S. Vaidya  6.00  6.00 
Mr. R. M. Pandia  8.00  8.00 
Mr. Dipesh K. Shroff  6.00  6.00 
Mr. Atul G. Shroff  6.00  6.00 
Mrs. Dr. Meena A. Galliara  6.00  6.00 
Mr. P. K. Molri  6.00  6.00 

NOTE 49. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES AS PER IND AS 24 (Contd.)
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NOTE 50. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND COMMITMENTS

 (a) Contingent Liabilities:

Particular As at  
March 31, 2021

As at 
 March 31, 2020

Income tax  321.91  321.91 

Excise duty  39.86  41.96 

Sales tax  17.89  17.89 

Custom duty  144.88  144.88 

Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts  36.28  36.28 

Liability in respect of claims made by workers and contract labourers  Amount not ascertainable  Amount not ascertainable 

   (i)  It is not practicable for the Group to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above contingent liabilities pending resolution 
of the respective proceedings as it is determinable only on the receipt of judgments / decisions pending with various forums / authorities.

  (ii)  The Group does not except any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.

  (iii)  The Group’s pending litigation comprises of claims against the Group made by workers / others and pertaining to proceedings pending with 
various direct tax, indirect tax and other authorities. The Group has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately 
provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities, where applicable, in its consolidated financial statements. 
The Group does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its consolidated financial statements.

 (b) Contingent Assets:
  The Group did not have any Contingent assets as at the end of the year.

 (c) Commitments:

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at 
 March 31, 2020

(i) Capital Commitments

  Capital expenditure contracted at the end of reporting period but not 
recognised as liabilities is as follows:

  Gross capital commitment  1,739.03  807.71 
  Less: Capital advance (Refer Note 11)  125.87  89.63 

 Net Capital Commitments  1,613.16  718.08 

  (ii) Other Commitments
    i) For other commitments relating to lease arrangements - (Refer Note 56)
    ii)  In terms of the Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) dated June 5, 2016 relating to the sale of shares in Excel Crop Care Limited, the 

Group, along with other selling shareholders, has agreed to certain indemnities, with overall restrictions on tenure, value etc., as more 
specifically agreed in the SPA. The Company has not received any such claims in terms of the SPA till March 31, 2021.

NOTE 51. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Particulars Year ended 
 March 31, 2021

Year ended 
 March 31, 2020

Earnings per equity share attributable to the equity holders (in INR) 
(a) Basic earnings per share  56.55  76.43 
(b) Diluted earnings per share  56.55  76.43 

 Earnings used in calculating earnings per share  

Particulars Year ended 
 March 31, 2021

Year ended 
 March 31, 2020

Basic earnings per share 
Profit / (Loss) attributable to the equity holders used in calculating basic earnings per 
share 

 7,108.59  9,607.25 

Diluted earnings per share 
Profit / (Loss) attributable to the equity holders used in calculating basic earnings per 
share 

 7,108.59  9,607.25 
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 Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator 

Particulars Year ended 
 March 31, 2021

Year ended 
 March 31, 2020

Number of shares Number of shares
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic earning per 
share 12,570,692 12,570,692
Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares used as the denominator in 
calculating diluted earning per share 12,570,692 12,570,692

NOTE 52. DISCLOSURE IN RELATION CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) EXPENDITURE:

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2021 

Year ended  
March 31, 2020

Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act  294.85  239.95 

Amount spent during the year on:

(i) Construction / Acquisition of assets — — 

(ii) On purpose other than (i) above  296.31  258.07 

Total  296.31  258.07 

 (i) Details of excess CSR expenditure under section 135(5) of the Act.

Balance excess spent as at April 1, 2020 Amount required 
to be spent 

during the year

Amount spent 
during the year

Balance excess 
spent as at March 

31, 2021

—  294.85  296.31 1.46

(ii) The Group does not carry any provision for corporate social responsibilities expenses for the current year and previous year.

(iii) The Group does not wish to carry forward excess amount of INR 1.46 lakhs spent during the current year.

(iv) The Group does not have any ongoing projects as at March 31, 2021.

NOTE 53. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Particulars Year ended 
 March 31, 2021

Year ended 
 March 31, 2020

Research and Development costs, debited to the Statement of Profit and Loss are as under:

Revenue expenses debited to Research and Development Expenses Account and other heads of accounts* 512.87 493.69

Depreciation on Research and Development Equipment 66.91 71.71

 579.78  565.40 

  *  includes INR 248.05 lakhs, INR 131.70 lakhs and INR 133.12 lakhs (Previous Year: INR 257.54 lakhs, INR 102.17 lakhs and INR 133.98 lakhs) in 
respect of Research and Development units at Roha, Lote and Mumbai respectively which is approved by the Department of Scientific & Industrial 
Research, Ministry of Science & Technology.

  Capital Expenditure incurred during the year on Research and Development INR 1,000.70 lakhs (Previous Year INR 35.98 lakhs) [including capital expenditure 
on qualifying assets of INR 1.54 lakhs, INR 1.22 lakhs and  INR 997.94 lakhs (Previous Year: INR 29.65 lakhs, INR 2.17 lakhs and  INR 4.16 lakhs in respect 
of Research and Development Units  at  Roha, Lote and Mumbai respectively which is approved by the Department of Scientific & Industrial Research, 
Ministry of Science & Technology)].

NOTE 54. DETAILS OF DONATION TO A POLITICAL PARTY
  The Group has given donation to political parties amounting to INR Nil Lakhs (Previous Year - INR 96.00 lakhs), which is included in Note-40, Other 

expenses.

NOTE 51. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Contd.)
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NOTE 55. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUIRED BY SCHEDULE III OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Name of the entity in the 
Group

Net assets (total assets 
minus total liabilities)

Share in profit or (loss) Share in other 
comprehensive income 

Share in total 
comprehensive income

As a % of 
consolidated 

net assets

Amount As a % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

Amount As % of 
consolidated 

other 
comprehensive 

income

Amount As % of 
consolidated 

total 
comprehensive 

income

Amount

Parent

Excel Industries Limited

 March 31, 2021 83.57%  71,163.54 98.75%  7,019.60 55.95%  4,451.53 76.14%  11,471.13 

 March 31, 2020 85.17%  59,692.41 97.29%  9,347.35 76.70%  (3,925.35) 120.77%  5,422.00 

Subsidiaries

Excel Bio Resources 
Limited

 March 31, 2021 0.08%  64.72 0.03%  2.42 0.00% — 0.02%  2.42 

 March 31, 2020 0.09%  62.30 0.02%  2.34 0.00% — 0.05%  2.34 

Kamaljyot Investments 
Limited

 March 31, 2021 16.35%  13,925.79 1.22%  86.57 44.05%  3,504.97 23.84%  3,591.54 

 March 31, 2020 14.74%  10,334.25 2.68%  257.56 23.30%  (1,192.39) -20.82%  (934.83)

Associate and Joint venture

 March 31, 2021 0.00% — 0.00% — 0.00% — 0.00% —

 March 31, 2020 0.00% — 0.00% — 0.00% — 0.00% —

Total

 March 31, 2021 100%  85,154.05 100%  7,108.59 100%  7,956.50 100%  15,065.09 

 March 31, 2020 100%  70,088.96 100%  9,607.25 100%  (5,117.74) 100%  4,489.51 

NOTE 56. DISCLOSURE IN RELATION TO IND AS 116

  This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee. For leases where the Group is a lessor, see Note 5. The Group leases various offices, 
warehouses, furniture, fittings and equipment. Rental contracts are made for 33 to 99 years in case of land and 3 years for building as per respective lease 
agreement, but may have extension options as described in (ii) below.

 (i) Amounts recognised in balance sheet

Particulars Building Land Total

Year ended March 31, 2021

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount  125.15  2,281.75  2,406.90 

Addition  —     —     —    

Disposal  —     —     —    

Closing gross carrying amount  125.15  2,281.75  2,406.90 

Accumulated depreciation

Opening accumulated depreciation  30.85  19.68  50.53 

Depreciation charged for the year  30.84  36.03  66.87 

Disposal  —     —     —    

Closing accumulated depreciation  61.69  55.71  117.40 

Net carrying amount  63.46  2,226.04  2,289.50 
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Particulars Building Land Total

Year ended March 31, 2020

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount  125.15  —     125.15 

Transition impact of Ind AS 116  —     205.40  205.40 

Addition  —     2,076.35  2,076.35 

Disposal  —     —     —    

Closing gross carrying amount  125.15  2,281.75  2,406.90 

Accumulated depreciation

Opening accumulated depreciation  —     —     —    

Depreciation charged for the year  30.85  19.68  50.53 

Disposal  —     —     —    

Closing accumulated depreciation  30.85  19.68  50.53 

Net carrying amount  94.30  2,262.07  2,356.37 

  The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities.

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at  

March 31, 2020

Lease Liability

Non-current (Refer Note 23)  217.33  251.05 

Current (Refer Note 29)  33.73  28.52 

 251.06  279.57 

  The following is the movement in lease liabilities.

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at  

March 31, 2020

Opening balance  279.57  125.15 

Additions  —     172.74 

Finance charge accrued during the year  21.88  6.02 

Deduction  —     —    

Payment of lease liability  (50.39)  (24.34)

Closing balance as at year end  251.06  279.57 

   The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities of non-cancellable contractual commitments as on an 
undiscounted basis:

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at  

March 31, 2020

(a) Less than one year  53.32  50.39 

(b) One year to five years  98.08  137.40 

(c) More than five years  693.00  707.00 

Total  844.40  894.79 

NOTE 56. DISCLOSURE IN RELATION TO IND AS 116  (Contd.)
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 (ii) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss
  Following are the expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2021:

Particulars Notes
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at  

March 31, 2020

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets  

 — Building 39  30.84  30.84 

 — Land 39  36.03  19.69 

Interest expense on lease liabilities 41  21.88  16.03 

Expenses relating to short-term leases (Included in Other expenses) 40  318.88  187.45 

Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets that are not shown 
above as short-term leases (Included in Other expenses) 40  114.88  108.15 

  The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March 2021 was INR 50.39 lakhs (March 31, 2020 INR 24.34 lakhs)

 (iii) Extension and termination options
   Extension and termination options are included in a number of property and equipment leases across the Group. These are used to maximise 

operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Group’s operations. All extension options held are exercisable by the Company and 
termination rights are held by the Group and lessor both as per the respective lease agreements.

NOTE 57. COVID 19 IMPACT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

  Manufacturing facilities of the Group which were shut down in the last week of March 2020 due to countrywide lockdown in the wake of Covid19 pandemic, 
resumed operations in a phased manner during the month of April 2020 after obtaining the requisite approvals. The Group continues to carry out it’s 
operations in compliance with the guidelines issued by the various authorities from time to time.

  The Group has carried out a detailed assessment of the Impact of the Covid19, including current wave, on the operations, on its liquidity position and on 
the recoverability and carrying values of assets and has concluded that there are no adjustments required in the consolidated financial statements for the 
year ended March 31, 2021. Further, the Management is of the view that considering the nature of its business operations, existing customer and supplier 
relationships and its market position, impact on its business operations, if any, arising from Covid19 pandemic is not expected to be significant.

  However, the impact of Covid19 pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements given the 
uncertainty associated with its nature and duration and accordingly the Group will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

NOTE 58. STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

  The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification which would have 
been applicable from April 1, 2021. MCA issued notifications dated March 24, 2021 to amend Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 to enhance the 
disclosures required to be made by the Group in its financial statements. These amendments are applicable to the Group for the financial year starting  
April 1, 2021.

NOTE 56. DISCLOSURE IN RELATION TO IND AS 116  (Contd.)
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